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To,                        July 10, 2025 

BSE Limited 

Listing Department, Wholesale Debt Market 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400 001 

Sub: Intimation of Notice of 23rd Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the 

Financial Year 2024-25  

 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 53(2)(a) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, please find 

enclosed the Notice convening the 23rd Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and the Annual 

Report of M/s. Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (“Company”) for the financial 

year 2024-25.  

  

The  23rd AGM  of  the  Company  will  be  held  on  Friday, August 1st,  2025  at  4.00  P.M.  

through  physical meeting at its corporate office, Sangeeta Towers # 3, 80ft Road, Indira 

Nagar, Bangalore – 560038. 

  

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 50(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to inform you that the 23rd AGM will be held, inter-

alia, to consider the following business:  

 

• Adoption of Standalone Financial statements (merged financials of Ascend Telecom 

Infrastructure Private Limited and Tower Vision India Private Limited) for the year 

ended 31st March 2025 along with Director’s and Auditor’s Reports thereon. 

• Adoption of Consolidated Financial statements for the year ended 31ST March 2025 

along with Auditor’s Report thereon. 

• Approval for the regularization of appointment of Mr. Samad A Momin [DIN: 02531039] 

as a nominee director of the company. 

• Appointment of secretarial auditor to conduct the secretarial audit for the FY 2025-26. 

• Ratification and approval of the remuneration of cost auditor for the financial year 2025-

26. 
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The Annual Report containing the 23rd AGM Notice is also uploaded on the Company’s 

website at https://www.ascendtele.com.  

  

This is for your information and appropriate dissemination. 

 

 

Kindly take the above on record. 

 

Thanking you. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

For Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited 

 

 

 

J Rajagopalan 

Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary & Compliance officer  
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NOTICE OF TWENTY THIRD ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting of the Company will be 
held on, Friday, 01st August 2025 at 04:00 P.M.(IST), at the Corporate Office of the Company 
situated at Sangeeta Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore-560038, Karnataka, 
India, to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 01 

 
ADOPTION OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (MERGED FINANCIALS OF THE 
COMPANY AND TOWER VISION INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (‘TVIPL’)) FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31ST MARCH 2025: 

 
To receive, consider and adopt the audited standalone Books of Accounts, Balance Sheet as at 
on 31st March 2025 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement and notes 
thereto as per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended on 31st March 2025 
together with the reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors report thereon. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 02: 
 
ADOPTION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST 
MARCH 2025: 

 
To receive, consider and adopt the consolidated audited Books of Accounts, Balance Sheet as 
on 31st March 2025 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Statement and notes 
thereto as per Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended on 31st March 2025, 
together with the reports of the Auditors thereon. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 03: 
 
APPROVAL FOR THE REGULARIZATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MR. SAMAD A MOMIN [DIN: 
02531039] AS A NOMINEE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT, the pursuant to provisions of section 149, 152 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act"), Mr. Samad A Momin (DIN: 02531039), 
who was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company by the Board of Directors with 
effect from 29th May 2025 in terms of Section 161(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
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Articles of Association of the Company and whose term of office expires at this General 
Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, the pursuant to provisions of Section 161(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("Act") and rule 14 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) 
Rules, 2014, articles of association of the Company and all other applicable provisions, if any, 
(including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), 
consent of the shareholders be and are hereby accorded to appoint Mr. Samad A Momin (DIN: 
02531039), as a Nominee Director who has given his written consent to be appointed as 
Nominee Director of the Company on behalf of GIP EM Ascend Pte. Ltd and not disqualified 
under Section 164 of the Act, to hold office with immediate effect for appointment as a 
Nominee Director. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in compliance with the provisions of the Act and rules framed 
thereunder the directors and the Company Secretary of the Company are hereby authorized 
severally to file necessary Forms with the Registrar of Companies and to do all other formalities 
and intimation in this connection including updating the register of directors record the 
appointment of Mr. Samad A Momin as a Nominee Director. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the certified true copy of the aforesaid resolution under the 
signature of any one director or the Company Secretary of the Company be forwarded to such 
persons or authorities as may be required from time to time. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 04: 
 
APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR TO CONDUCT THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT FOR 
THE PERIOD OF 5 YEARS (FY 2025-26 TO FY 2029-30): 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as 
an Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and 
Section 179 & 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, including any amendments thereto 
for the time being in force, the approval of the shareholders be and is hereby accorded to the 
appointment of Mr. Rafeeulla Shariff, Company Secretary in Practice (Certificate of Practice 
Number: 11103) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company to conduct audit of the secretarial 
and related records of the Company and to furnish secretarial audit report for the period of 5 
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years (FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30) on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the 
company and Secretarial Auditor plus out of pocket expenses and taxes, as applicable.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company (including any committee thereof) 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things to take all such steps as may be required in this 
connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution and to 
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard." 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 05: 
 
RATIFICATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26. 
 
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution 
as Ordinary Resolution'. 
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act 2013, the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 and the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s AGI & 
Associates, Cost Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 00123), appointed by the Board of 
Directors vide Board Meeting dated 29th May 2025, as Cost Auditors to conduct the Audit of the 
Cost Records of the Company for the Financial year ending 31st March 2025, amounting to INR 
5,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Lakhs Only) as also the payment of applicable tax and 
reimbursement of out of pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, be 
and is hereby approved. 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the approval of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the 
Board of Directors and Company Secretary of the Company (including any committee thereof) 
to do all such acts, deeds, matters, and things to take all such steps as may be required in this 
connection including seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this resolution and to 
settle any questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard." 
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On Behalf of the Board 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
Sd/- 
________________ 
J Rajagopalan 
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary 
           
Date: July 10, 2025 
Place: Bangalore 
 
 
Copy of notice to: 
 

 Directors of the Company 
 Shareholders of the Company 
 Auditors of the Company 
 Any other invitee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 of 221



 
 

Page 5 of 14 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) vide its General Circulars Nos. 14/2020 dated 

April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 20/2020 dated May 05, 2020, 9/2023 
dated September 25, 2023 subsequent circulars issued in this regard the latest 
being the 09/2024 dated 19th September 2024 (‘MCA Circulars’) has permitted the 
holding of the annual general meeting through Video Conferencing (“VC”) or through 
Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”), without the physical presence of the Members 
at a common venue. 

2. In compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) 
(including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 
read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (the 
“Rules”), as amended from time to time, read with the MCA Circulars, the  Annual General 
Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is scheduled to be held on Friday, 01st August, 2024 at 
04:00 P.M., (IST) at the Corporate Office of the Company situated at Sangeeta Towers #3, 80 
Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore-560038 Karnataka, India or through VC/OAVM and the 
voting for items to be transacted in the Notice to this AGM through show of hands. 

3. The Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (Act’) 
setting out material facts concerning the business with respect to Item Nos. 03, 04 & 05 
forms part of this Notice. 

4. The time of the meeting is as per the Time Zone in India (GMT +5:30) Indian Standard Time. 
5. The meeting allows two-way teleconferencing for the ease of participation of the members. 

The participants are allowed to pose questions concurrently and also given time submit 
questions in advance on the e-mail address of the company. 

6. The facility for joining the meeting over Video Conferencing (VC) has a capacity of 50 
members.  

7. The facility for attending the meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) shall be open 15 
minutes before the time scheduled to start the meeting and shall not be closed till the 
expiry of 15 minutes after the schedule time. 

8. The Chairman for the meeting shall be appointed in accordance with the Section 104 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 

9. Since the Annual General Meeting under this framework will be held through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) where physical attendance of 
members in any case has been dispensed with, there is no requirement of appointment of 
proxies. However, in the case of physical meeting a shareholder entitled to attend the 
meeting, is also entitled to appoint a proxy to attend instead of himself / herself, and such a 
proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company, subject to provisions of the Articles of 
Association. The Proxy Form in order to be effective must be deposited with the company 
before the time fixed for commencement of the meeting. 
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10. In the case of physical meeting, a person appointed as proxy shall act on behalf of such a 
member or number of members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than 
10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights and such proxy shall not 
represent more than 50 members of the Company.  
But if a member is already holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy for any other person or 
shareholder and such person shall not act as proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

11. Attendance of Members through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means 
(OAVM) shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under section 103 of the 
Act. 

12. The physical presence of members shall also be counted for the purpose of reckoning the 
quorum under section 103 of the Act.  

13. A representative of the members may be appointed for the purpose of voting through 
remote e-voting or for participation and voting in the meeting held through Video 
Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio-Visual Means (OAVM) member, in pursuance of Section 
113 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

14. The documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement shall be provided to 
the members through e-mail/hand delivery. 

15. During the meeting held through VC or OAVM facility, where a poll on any item is required, 
the members shall cast their vote on the resolutions only by sending emails through their 
email addresses which are registered with the Company to designated email address of the 
Company. 

16. The Chairman may decide to conduct a vote by show of hands, unless a demand for poll is 
made by any member in accordance with section 109 of the Act.    

17. In case the counting of votes requires time, the said meeting may be adjourned and called 
later to declare the result. 

18. Members are requested to notify any change in their address / other details immediately to 
the Company at its registered office. 

19. Members/Proxies should fill the Attendance Slip for attending the Meeting. 
20. The Register of Directors’ shareholding, maintained under Companies Act, is available for 

inspection by the members at the Annual General Meeting. 
21. The Register of Contracts, maintained under Companies Act, is available for inspection by 

the members at the Registered Office of the company. 
22. If any of the member interested to join for the meeting through VC or OACM, please write to 

us in advance at the designated e-mail ID rajagopalan.j@ascendtele.com. 
    

Members are requested to address all correspondences, to the Registered Office of the 
Company. 
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On Behalf of the Board 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
Sd/- 
________________ 
J Rajagopalan 
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary 
           
Date: July 10, 2025 
Place: Bangalore 
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 
(Pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 
As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, (hereinafter referred to as "the Act") the 
following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned 
under Item No. 03, 04 & 05 of the accompanying Notice dated 10th July 2025. 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 03: 
 
APPROVAL FOR THE REGULARIZATION OF APPOINTMENT OF MR. SAMAD A MOMIN [DIN: 
02531039] AS A NOMINEE DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY: 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed Mr. Samad A Momin as a (DIN: 
02531039) as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 29th May 2025. Pursuant 
to Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Samad A Momin, holds his office till the date 
of ensuring General Meeting. 
 
The Members are hereby being informed that the Company proposes to appoint Mr. Samad A 
Momin (DIN: 02531039) as a Nominee Director on the Board, being the nominee on behalf of 
GIP EM Ascend Pte. Ltd. 
 
Relevant documents referred to in respect of the said item are available for inspection without 
any fee by the Members at the venue of the meeting and during the normal business hours on 
any working day up to and till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 
 
The approval of the members is sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Agenda 
Item No. 03 of the Notice. 
 
102(1)-None of the below mentioned persons are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the said resolutions to be passed: 
    (i) Every director and the manager, if any; 
   (ii) Every other key managerial personnel; and 
   (iii) Relatives of the persons mentioned in sub-clauses (i) and (ii). 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 04: 
 
APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR TO CONDUCT THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT FOR 
THE PERRIOD OF 5 YEARS (FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30): 
 
The Board of Directors proposes to appoint Mr Rafeeulla Shariff, a qualified and experienced 
Company Secretary, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the period of 5 years (FY 
2025-26 to FY 2029-30). 
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In accordance with the provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 204 of 
the Companies Act, 2013, and the rules framed thereunder, the Company is required to 
conduct a Secretarial Audit to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations, 
corporate governance requirements, and internal control procedures. The Secretarial Auditor 
shall review and verify records, processes, and statutory obligations, providing an independent 
assurance report to the Board and stakeholders. 
 
The Board recommends the appointment of Mr. Rafeeulla Shariff to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit for the period of 5 years (FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30), based on his expertise, industry 
knowledge, and experience in corporate compliance matters. 
 
Relevant documents referred to in respect of the said item are available for inspection without 
any fee by the Members at the venue of the meeting and during the normal business hours on 
any working day up to and till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 
 
The approval of the members is sought by way of an Ordinary Resolution as set out in Agenda 
Item No. 04 of the Notice. 
 
102(1)-None of the below mentioned persons are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the said resolutions to be passed: 
    (i) Every director and the manager, if any; 
   (ii) Every other key managerial personnel; and 
   (iii) Relatives of the persons mentioned in sub-clauses (i) and (ii). 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 05: 
 
RATIFICATION AND APPROVAL OF THE REMUNERATION OF COST AUDITOR FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company had appointed M/s AGI & Associates, Cost 
Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: 00123), vide Board Meeting dated 29th May 2025, as 
Cost Auditors to conduct the Audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the Financial year 
ending 31st March 2026. 
 
In this regard, pursuant to Section 148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act 
2013, the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules 2014 and the Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for 
the time being in force), the remuneration payable to M/s AGI & Associates amounting to INR 
5,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Lakhs Only) as also the payment of applicable tax and 
reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the aforesaid audit, 
needs to be approved by the members. 
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Hence, this resolution is put for the consideration of shareholders. 
 
Relevant documents referred to in respect of the said item are available for inspection without 
any fee by the Members at the venue of the meeting and during normal business hours on any 
working day up to and till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting. 
 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors recommends the resolution set forth in Agenda Item No.05 
of this Notice for approval of Members as Ordinary Resolution. 
 
102(1)-None of the below mentioned persons are in any way concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise in the said resolutions to be passed: 
    (i) Every director and the manager, if any; 
   (ii) Every other key managerial personnel; and 
   (iii) Relatives of the persons mentioned in sub-clauses (i) and (ii). 
 
 
By the order of the Board 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
 
Sd/- 
________________ 
J Rajagopalan  
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary 
Date: July 10, 2025 
Place: Bangalore 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12 of 221



 
 

Page 11 of 14 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

 
                                                                                 Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 
Name of the company: ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Registered office: Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 & 119 / 1 / 4F / Unit No.10, 

4th Floor, Eden Amsri Sqaure, St Jhons Road, Secunderabad, 
Hyderabad, Secunderabad, Telangana, India, 500003.  

 
Name of the member(s): 
Registered address: 
Email Id: 
Folio No./Client Id: 
DP ID: 
I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint 
1. Name:   

Address:  
E-mail Id:  
Signature:  

 
2. Name:   

Address:  
E-mail Id:  
Signature:  

 
3. Name:   

Address:  
E-mail Id:  
Signature:  

 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Twenty 
Third Annual general meeting/ Extraordinary general meeting of the company, to be held on 
Friday, 01st August 2025 at 04:00 P.M., (IST) at the Corporate office of the Company situated at 
Sangeeta Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore 560038, Karnataka, India and at any 
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 
 

Resolution 
No. 

Particulars 

1.  The adoption of standalone financial statements (Merged financials of the 
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Company and Tower Vision India Private Limited (‘TVIPL’)) for the year ended 
31st March 2025. 

2.  Adoption of consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 
2025. 

3.  Approval for the Regularization of Appointment of Mr. Samad A Momin [DIN: 
02531039] as a Nominee Director of the Company 

4.  Appointment of Secretarial Auditor to conduct the Secretarial Audit for the  
period of 5 years (FY 2025-26 to FY 2029-30). 

5.  Ratification and approval of the remuneration of cost auditor for the financial 
year 2025-26. 

 
Signed this…… day of……… 20…. 
Signature of shareholder 
Signature of Proxy holder(s) 
 
Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement 
of the Meeting. 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Hall) 

 
I/We hereby record my/our presence at the Twenty Third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the 
Company being held on Friday, 01st August 2025 at 04:00 P.M (IST) at the corporate office of the 
Company situated at Sangeeta Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore 560038 
Karnataka, India: 
 
Regd. Folio No.  

 
Full Name of the Shareholder in Block Letters  

 
No. of Share held   

 
Name of the representative or proxy (if any) in 
Block Letters  

 

 
 
________________________________________ 
Signature of the Shareholder/Proxy/Representative* 
 
Note:  

1. Please fill this Attendance Slip and hand it over at the Registration Counter.  
2. Shareholder/Proxy Holder/Auth. Representatives are requested to show their Photo ID 

proof for attending the meeting.  
3. Authorised Representatives of Corporate members shall produce proper authorisation 

issued in their favour.  
4. Photocopied/torn Attendance Slip will not be accepted. 
5. This Attendance Slip is valid only in case shares are held as on the date of the AGM. 
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ROUTE MAP OF VENUE OF THE AGM 
 

Venue of AGM:  Sangeeta Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore 560038, Karnataka, 
India. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 
Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited, 
Registered Office Address: Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 & 119 /  
1 / 4F / Unit No.10, 4th Floor, Eden Amsri Square, St John’s Road, 
Secunderabad, Telangana, India, 500003. 
 
 
Your directors present the 23rd (Twenty Third) Annual Report of M/s Ascend Telecom Infrastructure 
Private Limited (the Company) along with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2025.  
 
1. PERIOD OF REPORT: 

 
This report pertains to the period from 01st April 2024 to 31st March 2025. 
 

2. WEBLINK OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
 
Pursuant to the amendments to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act read with Rule 12 
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual Return (Form MGT-
7) for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 shall be available on the Company’s website and 
can be accessed at www.ascendtele.com. 

 
3. FINANCIAL SUMMARY/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY (STANDALONE): 

 
The Board’s Report is prepared based on the standalone financial statements (Merged Financials 
of the Company and Tower Vision India Private Limited (‘TVIPL’) of the company. The following 
gives a summary of the financial performance on a standalone basis for the financial year ended 
31st March 2025: 

      (Amount in INR Million) 

Particulars For the year 
ended 

31/03/2025 

For the year 
ended 

31/03/2024 * 

Revenue from Operations 24,725 20,722 
Other Income 1,059 604 
Total Income 25,784 21,326 
Total Expenses (excluding Depreciation/ Amortization 
and Finance Costs) 

10,171 11,022 
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Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, 
Exceptional items and Tax Expense 

15,613 10,304 

Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 6,783 5,302 
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items 
and Tax Expense 

8,830 5,002 

Less: Finance Costs 4,872 4,704 
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 3,958 298 
Add/(less): Exceptional items - - 
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 3,958 298 
Less: Tax Expense (Current & Deferred) 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax charge/(credit) 

 
483 
487 

 
187 

(2,674) 

Profit /loss for the year (1) 2,988 2,785 
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) (2) (30) 0 
Total Comprehensive Income for the year (1+2) = (3) 2,958 2,785 

 
*TVIPL financials have been considered from 14th June 2023 i.e., date on which the Company 
has acquired shares in TVIPL. 

 
4. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT/REVIEW OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE ON 

CONSOLIDATED BASIS: 
 
‘Demello Telepower Private Limited’ (DTPL) is a ‘Wholly Owned Subsidiary’ (‘WOS’) of the 
Company. DTPL is a registered with Department of Telecommunications under category of 
Infrastructure Provider -1 category and provides passive telecom infrastructure services to 
telecom operators and has presence in Goa only.  

 
The Company has prepared the consolidated financial statement for the FY2024-25 including 
the financials of DTPL.  
 
The following gives a summary of the financial performance on consolidated basis for the year 
ended 31st March 2025: 

                                                                                   (Amount in INR Million) 
Particulars For the year ending 

31/03/2025 
For the year ending 

31/03/2024* 

Revenue from Operations 25,051 21,039 
Other Income 751 610  

Total Income 25,802 21,649 
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Total Expenses (excluding 
Depreciation/ Amortization and 
Finance Costs) 

10,244 11,089 

Profit before Depreciation, Finance 
Costs, Exceptional items and Tax 
Expense 

15,558 10,560 

Less: 
a) Depreciation/ Amortisation/ 

Impairment 
b) Finance Cost 

 
 

6,862 
 

4,917 

 
 

5,399 
 

4,756 
Profit/Loss before Exceptional 
Items and Tax Expense 

3,779 405 

Add/Less: Exceptional items - - 
Profit / Loss Before Tax 3,779 405 
Less: Tax Expenses 
Current Tax 
Deferred Tax charge/(Credit) 

 
(7) 

(1,585) 

 
757 

(623) 
Profit / Loss for the year (1) 5,371 271 
Other Comprehensive Income/(loss) 
(2) 

 
(30) 

 
0 

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the year (1) + (2) = (3) 

5,341 271 

                      *TVIPL, financials have been considered from 14th June 2023 i.e., date on which 
Company has acquired shares in TVIPL. 

 
Consolidated EBITDA for the year closed at INR 15,558/- (in million) compared to Previous year 
INR 10,560/- (in million). 
 

5. STATE OF COMPANY AFFAIRS: 
 
Your Company is in the business of providing passive infrastructure services to various telecom 
operators. 
  

➢ The total Income of the Company for the year under review is INR Mn 25,784. In 
comparison to previous year figure of INR Mn 21,326 representing a positive growth of 
about 20.90%. 

 
➢ The EBITDA for the year closed at INR Mn 15,613 in relation to previous year figure of INR 

Mn 10,304 representing a positive growth of about 51.52%. 
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➢ The finance cost & depreciation for the year closure is INR Mn 11,655 previous year INR 
Mn 10,006.  

 
➢ During the year company has earned a net profit of INR Mn 2,988 in comparison to 

previous year figure net profit of INR Mn 2,785.  
 

➢ Net Worth as on 31st March 2025 – INR Mn 24,399. 
 

➢ During the year external credit rating of the company was reaffirmed to ‘AA-‘. 
 

6. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(b) OF COMPANIES ACT, 
2013: 
 
The Board duly met for 05 (Five) times during the year under review on the following dates. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 

SL 
NO 

DATE OF BOARD 
MEETING 

BOARD STRENGTH NO. OF DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1 29.05.2024 04 04 
2 09.08.2024 04 04 
3 25.09.2024 04 04 
4 08.11.2024 04 03 
5 14.02.2025 04 04 

 
The Audit Committee met for 04 (Four) times during the year under review on the following 
date: 

 
SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF AUDIT 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 29.05.2024 03 03 
2. 09.08.2024 03 03 
3. 07.11.2024 03 03 
4. 14.02.2025 03 03 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met for 01 (One) time during the year under 
review on the following date: 
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF NRC COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 14.02.2025 03 02 
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The Risk Management Committee met for 01 (One) time during the year under review on the 
following date: 

 
SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF RMC COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 08.11.2025 03 02 

 
The CSR Committee met for 02 (Two) times during the year under review on the following  
date: 
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF CSR COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 29.05.2024 02 02 
2. 08.11.2024 03 03 

 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met for 01 (One) time during the year under review 
on the following date: 
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF SRC COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 14.02.2025 03 02 

 
The Independent Directors Meeting met for 01 (One) time during the year under review on the 
following date: 
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS MEETING 

MEETING 
STRENGTH 

NO. OF DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1. 14.02.2025 02 02 

 
7. PRESENCE/ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTOR IN THE MEETINGS: 
 

SL. 
No 

Name of the Director Board Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

director was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 05 05 100 
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2 Sharad Malhotra 05 05 100 
3 Anjali Gupta 05 05 100 
4 Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 05 04 80 

 
 

SL. 
No 

Name of the Member Audit Committee Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

Member was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 04 04 100 
2 Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 04 04 100 
3 Anjali Gupta 04 04 100 

 
SL. 
No 

Name of the Director Independent Directors Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

director was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Anjali Gupta 01 01 100 
2 Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 01 01 100 

 
 

SL. 
No 

Name of the Member CSR Committee Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

Member was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 02 02 100 
2 Sharad Malhotra 02 02 100 
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3 Anjali Gupta 01 01 100 
 

SL. 
No 

Name of the Member Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

Member was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Anjali Gupta 01 01 100 
2 Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 01 01 100 
3 Sharad Malhotra 01 00 00 

 
SL. 
No 

Name of the Member Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

Member was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 01 01 100 
2 Sharad Malhotra 01 00 00 
3 Anjali Gupta 01 01 100 

 
SL. 
No 

Name of the Member Risk Management Committee Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

Member was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 01 01 100 
2 Sharad Malhotra 01 01 100 
3 Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 01 00 00 
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8. DIVIDEND: 
 

The Board of Directors of the Company, during the year in their meeting held on August 9, 2024, 
November 8, 2024, and by circular resolution on February 20, 2025, declared an interim dividend 
of Rs.35.16 per share (i.e., 352% on the face value of Rs.10 per share), Rs.6.59 per share (i.e., 
66% on the face value of Rs.10 per share) and Rs 16.48 per share (i.e., 165% on the face value of 
Rs.10 per share) aggregating to Rs.1,600 million, Rs.300 million and Rs.750 million, respectively 
for the financial year 2024-25 and the same was paid during the year. 

 
The Board of Directors of Tower Vision India Private Limited (TVI) (now merged with Company) ,in 
their meeting held on June 12, 2024, September 25, 2024 and November 11, 2024, declared an 
interim dividend of Rs 2 per share (i.e., 20% on the face value of Rs.10 per share), Rs.1 per share 
(i.e., 10 % on the face value of Rs.10 per share) and Rs.1 per share (i.e., 10 % on the face value of 
Rs.10 per share) aggregating to Rs.131 million, Rs. 65.5 million and Rs.65.5 million respectively 
(consequent to elimination of inter company transactions) for the financial year 2024-25 and the 
same was paid to non-controlling shareholders who are also shareholders of our Company) of 
TVI (now merged with Company) during the period. 
 

9. TRANSFER TO RESERVE IN TERMS OF SECTION 134(3)(j) OF THE COMPANIES   ACT, 2013: 
 

The Board of Directors of the company have decided not to transfer any amount to the Reserves 
for the year under review. 
 

10. LONG TERM LOAN: 
 
Lender wise outstanding loan as on 31.03.2025 is as under: 
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of lenders Outstanding Loan 
Amount as on 

31.03.2025 
(Amount in INR 

Million) 
1. NIIF Infrastructure Finance Limited  8989.00 
2. National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and 

Development 
3853.00 

3. ICICI Bank Limited 760.00 
4. State Bank of India 106.00 
 Total 13708.00 

 
11. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS  
 

During the period under the review, following are the changes in the Composition of the Board 
during the year. 
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Sr. 
No 

Name of the 
Director 

Appointment/ 
Cessation/ Others 

Designation Date of 
Appointment/ 

Cessation/Others 

1. Anjali Gupta Regularization Director 
(Independent) 

25th April 2024 

2. Syed 
Mohammed Aun 
Safawi 

Regularization Director 
(Independent) 

25th April 2024 
 

 

 
Further, after the end of the financial year and before the signing of this report following changes 
took place in the composition of the Board. 
 

Sr. 
No 

Name of the 
Director 

Appointment/ 
Cessation/ Others 

Designation Date of 
Appointment/ 

Cessation/Others 

1. Samad A Momin Appointment Additional 
Director 

29th May 2025 

 
12. COMPANY’S POLICIES ON APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS, REMUNERATION AND OTHER 

MATTERS:  
 
As of March 31, 2025, the Board had four members, consisting of two Nominee Directors and 
two independent directors. One of the independent directors of the Board is a woman. 

 
The Company has a policy in place on directors’ appointment and remuneration, including the 
criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other 
matters, as required under sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

13. POLICIES:  
 
The details of the policies approved and adopted by the Board as required under the Act and 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) regulations are provided in ANNEXURE I to the 
Board’s report. 
 

14. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 
 
The Company has received necessary declaration from each independent director under Section 
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, that he / she meets the criteria of independence laid down 
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in Section 149(6), Code for independent directors of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 
16(1) (b) of the Listing Regulations. 

 
15. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES’/MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION:  

 
If company is Private company, such Company doesn’t fall under the purview of the criteria laid 
in Rule 5 disclosure with respect to, employee in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits 
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Therefore, reporting under this head shall 
not apply to the Company. 

 
16. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS / OUTGO: 
 

a) Conservations of Energy: 
 

a. The steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:  
As part of the normal course of the business, the company operates and maintains 
telecom tower infrastructure, which requires energy consumption. Every endeavour has 
been made to ensure the optimal use of energy, avoid wastage and conserve energy. 
 

b. The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: 
The Company continuously explores global technology opportunity as a benchmark and 
as required, enters into arrangements to avail of the latest technology trends and 
practices. 
 

c. The Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s; NIL 
 

b) Technology Absorption:  
 

a. The efforts made towards technology absorption: 
Your Company’s Contribution to ‘Going Green’ is inherent to the Business Model of 
tower sharing as every co-location we add to the network helps in bringing down the 
energy consumption on a per co-location basis. 
 

b. The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution: 
Your Company made a strategic decision to transition from conventional lead-acid 
VRLA batteries to high-efficiency Lithium-Ion (Li-ion) batteries as part of commitment 
to environmental sustainability. Your Company is pleased to share that, as of the 
close of FY25, 19.25% of our portfolio sites are now operating on Li-ion battery 
systems. This transition has helped us significantly reduce waste generation from 
operations and minimize landfill contributions. 
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c. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from 
the beginning of the financial year); NA 

i. The details of technology imported: NA 
ii. The year of import: NA 

iii. Whether the technology been fully absorbed: NA 
iv. If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the 

reasons thereof: NA and  
v. The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil 

 
c) Foreign Exchange Earnings or Expenses during the year: 

 
During this period company has neither earned any foreign currency as income nor incurred 
any expense in foreign currency. 

 

d) Process Compliance Programs – ISO & ESG & Integrated Management System [ISO]: 
 
We are pleased to share that your Company, has successfully completed the re-certification 
audit of our Integrated Management System (IMS), covering compliance with ISO 9001:2015 
(Quality Management System) and ISO 14001:2015 (Environmental Management System) 
standards. 
 
Your Company has successfully completed fourth-year ESG assurance audit through 3rd party 
audit agency.  
 
Commitment to Climate Resilience and TCFD Alignment 
 
Your Company is determined in commitment to Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) 
principles. We continuously strive to enhance our systems and standards to reflect this 
commitment. A key milestone in this journey is our alignment with the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (TCFD), developed in collaboration with the esteemed third-party 
sustainability consultant, ERM. 
 
This alignment marks a significant step forward in addressing climate-related risks and 
opportunities while reinforcing our strategic focus on transparency, accountability, and long-
term value creation. 
 
Purpose 
• To strengthen your company’s resilience to climate change and align operations with both 
global and national climate goals. 
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• To transparently communicate our climate-related strategies and actions to investors, 
customers, and key stakeholders. 

 
17. SHARE CAPITAL & SECURITIES: 

 
The Capital Structure for the year ended 31st March 2025 is as follows: 

 
Particulars As of 31st March, 2025 As of 31st March, 2024 

Number of 
Shares 

Amount 
(In Rs. Mn) 

Number of Shares Amount 
(In Rs. 

Mn) 
AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL 

Equity Shares of Rs. 
10/- each 

 
1,68,90,00,000 

 
16,890 

 

 
76,40,00,000  

 
7,640 

Preference Shares of 
Rs. 10/- each 

10,00,000 10 10,00,000 10 

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND FULLY PAID-UP CAPITAL 
Equity Shares of Rs. 

10/- each 
 

4,55,07,983 455 4,55,07,983 455 

*Further, after the end of the financial year and before the signing of this report, 27,29,008 number 
of fully paid-up equity shares have been allotted to GIP EM 2 PTE LTD, pursuance to swap ratio agreed 
in Scheme of Amalgamation. The Board of Company in its meeting held on 29th May 2025 has 
approved this allotment hence the paid-up capital has increased to Rs.4,82,36,991/-. 
 

A. INCREASING AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL: 
 

The Tower Vision India Private Limited (Transferor Company) was amalgamated with Ascend 
Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (Transferee Company), vide order passed by National 
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide order Dated 24th January 2025. Upon the Scheme 
coming into effect, the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company combined with 
Transferee Company and Transferee Company’s authorized share capital in terms of its MOA 
and AOA automatically stand enhanced without any further act, instrument or deed. The 
Company’s Authorised share capital has been increased from INR.765 Cr to INR.1,690 Cr.  

 
18. TRANSFER OF SHARES: 

 
During the financial year, there was no transfer of shares of the Company.  
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19. SHARES: 
 

a. Buy back of securities: 
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review. 

b. Sweat equity: 
The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review. 

c. Bonus share: 
No Bonus Shares were issued during the year under review. 

d. Employees Stock Option Plan: 
The Company has not provided any Stock Option Scheme to the employees. 

 
20. MAJOR EVENTS OCCURRED DURING THE YEAR: 

 
a. Change in business/ Status of the Company: 

There have been no changes made in the nature of the business by the Company for the year 
to which the financial statements and the report relate to. 

 
b. Change in the financial year: 

There is no change in the Financial Year of the company. 
 

c. Details and status of acquisition, merger, expansion, modernization and diversification: 
 
• Amalgamation of Tower Vision India Private Limited (TVI) with the Company: 

 
On June 14, 2023, Company has acquired 92.7% shares of Tower Vision India Private Limited 
(TVI) and accounted for it as per Ind AS 103 'Business combination'.  The Board of Directors 
(“Board”) of TVI and of the Company at their respective meetings held on December 15, 2023 
considered and approved a scheme of amalgamation and arrangement (the “Scheme”) in 
relation to the amalgamation of TVI with the Company under Sections 230 to 232 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. The Scheme was 
approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Hyderabad Bench on January 24, 
2025. The Scheme provided for an appointed date of June 15, 2023. The approved NCLT 
orders have been filed with the Registrar of Companies (RoC) on February 26, 2025. Pursuant 
to filing of the orders with the RoC, TVI status under Ministry of Corporate Affairs changed 
from ‘Active’ to ‘Amalgamated’.  
 
Pursuant to the scheme, the authorised equity share capital of the Company stands 
increased, without any further act or deed on the part of the Company, including payment of 
stamp duty and Registrar of Companies fees, by Rs. 9,250 million, being the authorised 
equity share capital of the transferor company. Memorandum of Association and Articles of 
Association of the Company stand amended accordingly without any further act or deed on 
the part of the Company. 
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In accordance with the terms of the approved Scheme, the non-controlling shareholders of 
TVI were to receive 1 equity shares of the Company (face value of Rs. 10 each) for every 24 
equity shares of TVI (face value of Rs. 10 each). The allotment of 27,29,008 equity shares to 
the non-controlling shareholder of TVI was completed on May 29, 2025. 

 
d. Developments, acquisition and assignment of material Intellectual Property Rights: 

There have been no developments, acquisitions and assignments of material Intellectual 
Property for the year to which the financial statements and the report relate to. 

 
21. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 

 
Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the company which 
have occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial 
statements relate and the date of the report: 
 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there have been no material changes and 
commitments which can affect the financial position of the Company occurred between the end 
of the financial year of Company and date of this report. 

 
22. DETAILS UNDER SECTION 67 (3) OF ACT, 2013 IN RESPECT OF ANY SCHEME OF PROVISION 

OF MONEY FOR PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES BY EMPLOYEES OR BY TRUSTEES FOR THE 
BENEFIT OF EMPLOYEES: 
 
During the year under review, there are no such voting rights not exercised directly by the 
employees in respect of shares to which the scheme relates as required under Section 67 (3) of 
Act. 
 

23. DISCLOSURE ON EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION/ PURCHASE SCHEME; 
 
During the year under review, no Employee Stock option plan was issued as per Rule 12 (9) of 
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, Clause 12 of SEBI (Employee Stock 
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Clause 19.1 of 
SEBI (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 
1999). 
 

24. DEPOSITS: 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and 
consequently, there are no outstanding deposits in terms of Section 73 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014 (as amended). 
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Further, the Company is annually filing with the Registrar of Companies requisite return in e-form 
DPT-3 for submitting the details of outstanding receipts of money/ loan by the Company, which 
are not considered as deposits under Rule 2(1)(c) of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) 
Rules, 2014. 
 

25. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 
 
Details of Subsidiaries, Joint venture or Associate companies:  
 

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the company No. of Shares Held Percentage of 
Shareholding 

1. Demello Telepower Private 
Limited 

Relationship: Wholly Owned 
Subsidiary 

10,000 Equity Shares 100.00% 

 
During the year, the Board of Directors reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary. In accordance with 
Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we have prepared the Consolidated financial 
statements of the Company. 
 
During the year, the Board of Directors (“Board”) of TVI, erstwhile subsidiary and of the Company 
at their respective meetings held on December 15, 2023 considered and approved a scheme of 
amalgamation and arrangement (the “Scheme”) in relation to the amalgamation of TVI with the 
Company under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the rules thereunder. The Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal 
(NCLT) Hyderabad Bench on January 24, 2025. The Scheme provided for an appointed date of 
June 15, 2023. The approved NCLT orders have been filed with the Registrar of Companies (RoC) 
on February 26, 2025.  
 
Pursuant to section 129 of the Act, the statement containing salient features of the financial 
statements of Company’s subsidiary is given in ANNEXURE – II (Form AOC -1) forms part of the 
Board’s Report. The statement also provides details of the performance and financial position of 
the subsidiary, along with the changes that occurred, during the financial year 2024-25.  
 

 
26. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: 

 
In compliance with Regulation 34(3) of the Listing Regulations, a separate report on the 
Corporate Governance, as stipulated under the Listing Regulations is presented in a separate 
section forming part of this Integrated Annual Report. 
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27. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
 

The net profit was more than INR 5,00,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Five Crore Only) during the 
Financial Year 2024-25, according to which, CSR provisions has been made applicable on the 
Company, as are contained in Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
As per the rule 9 (Disclosure about CSR Policy) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and as per 
the rule 8 (CSR Reporting) of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 the 
annual report on CSR given in ANNEXURE III (CSR), which forms a part of this Board report. 
 

28. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS:  
 

There are no loans, guarantee given by the Company in terms of Section 186 of the Act, during 
the financial year. 
 
Further, the investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of the 
notes to the financial statements. 

 

29. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:  
 
Details relating to related party transactions during the period under review are provided in 
ANNEXURE IV (AOC-2) and forms part of this Board’s report. 
 

30. STATEMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY: 
 

The Company has taken the required measures for reduction and elimination of Risk though the 
elements of risk threatening the company’s existence are very minimal. 
 

31. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL 
MECHANISM: 
 
Pursuant to provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Regulation 18 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the company has 
constituted Audit Committee during the FY2024-25. 
 
Composition of Audit Committee: 
 

Name Designation Position in Committee 
Anjali Gupta Director (Independent) Chairperson 

J. Rajagopalan Company Secretary Secretary 
Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee Director Member 

Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi Director (Independent) Member 
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VIGIL MECHANISM: 
 
The Company has adopted a whistleblower mechanism for directors and employees to report 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct and ethics.  
 

32. MAINTAINENCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT UNDER 
SECTION 148(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013: 
 
The maintenance of Cost Records has been specified by the Central Government under Sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the telecommunications activities carried on by 
the company. 

During the year Company has maintained the specified accounts and records under the section 
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the telecommunication service. 

33. AUDITORS:  
 
Statutory Auditors: 

 
M/s Price Waterhouse & Co Chartered Accountants LLP (FRN: 304026E/E300009) were 
appointed by the company in the Twenty Second Annual General Meeting held on 28th June 2024 
to hold office for a period of 05 (Five) years from the financial year 2024-25 to 2028-29 till the 
conclusion of Twenty Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
 
Internal Auditors: 
 
In terms of Section 138 of the Act and other applicable laws, the Board at its meeting held on May 
29, 2024, had appointed M/s. BDO India LLP, Chartered Accountants, (LLP No. AAB-7880) as the 
Internal Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2025. 
 
Cost Auditors: 
 
M/s. AGI & ASSOCIATES, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00123), were appointed as the 
Cost Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25, at the meeting of the Board of 
Directors of the Company held on May 29, 2024. 
 
Secretarial Auditor:  
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules 2014 and all other applicable 
provisions, if any (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), the Company at its meeting held on May 29, 2024 had appointed Mr. Rafeeulla 
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Shariff, Practicing Company Secretary (Firm Registration No: 11103) to undertake the Secretarial 
Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2024-25.  
 
The details of the reports and certificate received from Mr. Rafeeulla Shariff for the financial year 
2024-25 are as under: 
 
a. Secretarial Audit Report under Section 204 of the Act read with Rules made thereunder and 

Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, is set out in Annexure V to this Report. 
b. Annual Secretarial Compliance Report in relation to compliance with all applicable SEBI 

Regulations/ Circulars/Guidelines issued thereunder, Secretarial Standards issued by the 
ICSI, pursuant to requirement of Regulation 24A of the Listing Regulations, is set out in 
Annexure VI to this Report. 

c. Auditor’s Certificate on Corporate Governance is set out in Annexure VII to this Report as 
required by Schedule V of the Listing Regulations. 

 
The Secretarial Audit Report and Annual Secretarial Compliance Report for the financial year 
2024-25, does not contain any qualification, reservation, or adverse remark.  

 
34. EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION 

OR ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE:  
 

The Board has duly examined the Statutory Auditor’s Report on the Standalone and Consolidated 
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which is self-
explanatory. 
 
The report does not contain any observation, disclaimer, qualification, or adverse remarks. 
 

35. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS, COURTS 
AND TRIBUNALS: 
 
The Board of Directors (“Board”) of TVI and of the Company at their respective meetings held on 
December 15, 2023 considered and approved a scheme of amalgamation and arrangement (the 
“Scheme”) in relation to the amalgamation of TVI with the Company under Sections 230 to 232 
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules thereunder. The 
Scheme was approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Hyderabad Bench on 
January 24, 2025. The Scheme provided for an appointed date of June 15, 2023. The approved 
NCLT orders have been filed with the Registrar of Companies (RoC) on February 26, 2025. 
 
Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no significant and material order has been passed 
by the regulators, courts, tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company’s 
operations in future. 
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36. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND: 
 
There were no funds which were required to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund (IEPF). 
 

37. COMPLIANCE WITH MANDATORY SECRETARIAL STANDARDS: 

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the applicable mandatory 
Secretarial Standards i.e., Secretarial Standard – 1 (Meetings of the Board of Directors) and 
Secretarial Standard – 2 (General Meetings) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India. 
 

38. LISTING ON STOCK EXHANGE: 
 
During the year, the Company has not listed any shares. However, the company has listed its 
Non-Convertible Debentures in FY 23-24. 
 

39. DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEES: 
 
Name of Debenture Trustee:  
Axis Trustee Services Limited  
Address:  
Axis House, Bombay Dyeing Mills Compound, Pandhurang Budhkar Marg, Worli, Mumbai, 
Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400025. 
Email:  
debenturetrustee@axistrustee.in 

 
40. INTENAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

 
The Company has a proper and adequate system of internal control, commensurate with the 
size, scale and complexity of its operations, to ensure all the assets are safeguarded and 
protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and the transactions are 
authorized, regarded and reported correctly. The internal control is supplemented by an 
extensive program of internal audits, review by management and procedures. Internal control 
is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial 
statements and other data, and for maintaining accountability of assets. 
 
 
 
 
 

35 of 221



 
 

Page 20 of 23 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ”  

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 
 

41. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT WORKPLACE: 
 
The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its employees. 
The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The 
Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013.  
 
The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during the 
year: 
 
(a) Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year – NIL 
(b) Number of complaints received during the year - NIL 
(c) Number of complaints disposed of during the year – NIL 
(d) Number of cases pending for more than 90 days– NIL 
(e) Number of cases pending at the end of the year – NIL 

 
The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal 
Complaints Committee (‘ICC’) under the POSH Act.  The ICC has been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
 

42. MATERNITY BENEFIT COMPLIANCE: 
 
The Company is required to comply with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. It is 
committed to ensuring adherence to the Act, which safeguards the rights of employees during 
and after maternity. The Company provides maternity leave and other entitlements as mandated 
by the legislation. 
 
The following is a summary of Maternity Benefits given during the year: 
 
a) Maternity Leave Provisions - Nil 
b) Salary and Benefits given - Nil 
c) Related employee’s entitlements - Nil 

 
43. DETAILS OF DOWNSTREAM INVESTMENT: 

 
A certificate from the Statutory Auditors of your Company stating that your Company has duly 
complied with the requirements of downstream investment Foreign Exchange Management 
(Non-debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 issued vide Notification no. 3732(E) dated October 17, 2019 
read with Foreign Exchange Management (Mode of payment and reporting of non-debt 
instruments) Regulations, 2019 issued vide Notification no. FEMA. 395/2019-RB dated October 
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17, 2019 (collectively referred as “FEMA Downstream Investment Rules and Notifications”) both 
issued by Reserve Bank of India (“RBI”), is attached as Annexure VIII. 

 
44. A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, 

EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT 
DIRECTORS APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR:  

In the opinion of the Board, the independent directors appointed during the year possess requisite 
integrity, expertise, experience and proficiency. 

45. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE 
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016) DURING THE YEAR ALONGWITH 
THEIR STATUS AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:  

The company has not made any application under the Insolvency and bankruptcy code, 2016 
during the year. 

46. THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF 
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS 
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF: 

 
During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any one-time settlement scheme 
with the banks or financial institutions. Hence, the disclosure required to be made pertaining to 
the details of the difference between the amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time 
settlement and the valuation done while taking a loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions 
along with the reasons thereof is not applicable. 
 

47. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 
 

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board, based on the representations received from the 
management, confirms that: 
 
a) In the preparation of the annual accounts, for year ended on 31.03.2025, the applicable 

accounting standards have been followed and that there are no material departures. 
b) The Board has selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimated that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view 
of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss 
of the Company for that period.  

c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; and  

d) The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concerns basis. 
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e) that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company 
and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively as at and 
during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025; and  

f) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

 
48. DETAILS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: 

 
The Company has laid down a set of standards, processes and structure which enables the 
implementation of internal financial controls across the organization and that such controls are 
adequate and are operating effectively. 
 
Annexure 2 to the Auditor's Report provides for Auditor's opinion on the Internal Financial 
Controls of the Company. 
 
During the year under review, no material or serious observation has been observed for 
inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls. 

 
49. DETAILS OF FRAUD REPORT BY THE AUDITORS: 

 
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditors of the Company 
have not reported any instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or 
employees as specified under Section 143(12) of the Act.  

 
50. GENERAL: 
 

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as 
there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 
a) Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013. 
b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any 

scheme. 
c) The Company has the wholly owned subsidiary, however, there are no Managing Director nor 

the Whole-time Directors on the board of the Company. Hence, the receipt of remuneration 
or commission from any of its subsidiaries does not arise. 

 
51. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS: 

 
Your directors gratefully acknowledge all stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, 
members, clients, employees, consultants, business partners, lenders, associates, solicitors, 
vendors, shareholders, auditors, bankers, business associates and various Government/Local 
Authorities for the continued support extended to the Company, for the excellent support 
received from them during the year. The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to 
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all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the 
Company. 

 
 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 
 
Sd/-      Sd/-      
________________    ____________________ 
Sharad Malhotra             Milind Mukund Joshi             
Nominee Director                             Nominee Director             
DIN: 02192770                                         DIN: 02685576 
 
 
 
Date: July 09, 2025                                                        
Place: Mumbai     
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
 
Corporate governance involves a set of relationships between a company’s management, its 
board, its shareholders and other stakeholders. Corporate governance also provides the 
structure through which the objectives of the company are set, and the means of attaining those 
objectives and monitoring performance are determined. It helps define the way authority as well 
as responsibilities are allocated and how decisions are taken. Good governance aims at 
achieving high levels of accountability, efficiency, responsibility, transparency, and fairness in all 
areas of operation to increase the confidence of investors and other stakeholders. The 
Company’s endeavour is to constantly promote and enhance the stakeholders’ legitimate 
interests. 
 
Ethics / Governance Policies: 
 
The Company endeavours to conduct its businesses and strengthen relationships in a manner 
that is dignified, distinctive and responsible. The Company adheres to ethical standards to 
ensure integrity, transparency, independence and accountability in dealing with all the 
stakeholders. Therefore, the Company has adopted various codes and policies to carry out its 
duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are: 
 
• Code of conduct for Directors and Senior Managerial Personnel. 
• Code of Business Conduct and Ethics applicable to all employees. 
• Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair 

Disclosures of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information. 
• Corporate Social Responsibility Policy. 
• Nomination and Remuneration Policy. 
• Policy on Whistle Blower. 
• Policy on Related Party Transactions. 
• Policy against Sexual Harassment. 
 

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 

A. Board composition and category of Directors: 
 

The composition of the Board and category of Directors is as follows: 
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Category Name of the Directors 

Executive Directors - 
Non-Executive Directors Sharad Malhotra 

Milind Mukund Joshi 
Independent Non-Executive Directors Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi 

Anjali Gupta 
B. Attendance of each director at the meeting of the Board of Directors and the last Annual 

General Meeting: 
 
The attendance of each directors at Board meetings and at the last Annual General Meeting 
(AGM) is detailed below: 
 

Sl.No. Name of the director Board Meeting Whether Present 
at the previous 

AGM held on 28th 
June 2024 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 
director 

was 
entitled 

to attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 05 05 100 No 
2 Sharad Malhotra 05 05 100 No 
3 Anjali Gupta 05 05 100 No 
4 Syed Mohammed Aun 

Safawi 
05 04 80 No 

 
C. Number of other board of directors or committees in which a director is a member or 

chairperson 
 

Sl.No. Name Designation Number of 
Companies/Body 

Corporates 
1. Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee 

Director 
02 

2. Sharad Malhotra Director 17 
3. Anjali Gupta Director 01 
4. Syed Mohammed 

Aun Safawi 
Director 01 

 
Board Committees and Meetings of the Board in compliance with the statutory requirements 
and best practices, the Company has constituted various committees viz. Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, Stakeholders 
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Relationship Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, Independent directors 
Committee. 
 

D. Number of meetings of the Board of Directors held during the year: 
 
The Board duly met for 05 (Five) times during the year under review on the following dates. The 
intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013. 
 

SL.NO DATE OF BOARD 
MEETING 

BOARD STRENGTH NO. OF DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1 29.05.2024 04 04 
2 09.08.2024 04 04 
3 25.09.2024 04 04 
4 08.11.2024 04 03 
5 14.02.2025 04 04 

 
E. Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se. 

 
"The directors of Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited have no inter-se 
relationships." 
 

F. Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non- executive directors 
 
None of the non-executive directors of Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited hold any 
shares or convertible instruments in the company. 

 
G. Confirmation that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfil the 

conditions specified in these regulations and are independent of the management. 
 

In the opinion of the Board, all independent directors of Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private 
Limited fulfil the conditions specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are independent of the management. 

 
H. Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who 

resigns before the expiry of his/ her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that 
there are no other material reasons other than those provided. 
 
During the financial year 2024–25, there were no instances of resignation by any independent 
director prior to the completion of their tenure. 
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Further, details of the familiarisation programmes conducted for independent directors have 
been duly disclosed and are available on the Company’s website www.ascendtele.com.  
 

III. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
  

A.  Composition of the Audit Committee: 
 
Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“Act”) read with rules made thereto and Regulation 18 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [hereinafter 
“Listing Regulations”] has duly constituted Audit Committee.  

 
Name Designation Position in Committee 

Anjali Gupta Director (Independent)  Chairperson 
J. Rajagopalan Company Secretary Secretary 

Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee Director  
(Non- Executive) 

Member 

Syed Mohammed Aun 
Safawi 

Director (Independent)  Member 

 
B. The Audit Committee met 04 (Four) times during the year under review on the following 

dates:  
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF AUDIT 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH  

COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 29.05.2024 03 03 
2. 09.08.2024 03 03 
3. 07.11.2024 03 03 
4. 14.02.2025 03 03 

 
C. The attendance of the Audit Committee members is as under: 

 
SL.  
No  

Name of the Members  Audit Committee Meeting 
No of the meetings 
which the member 

was entitled to attend 

No of Meeting 
Attended 

% 

1  Milind Mukund Joshi  04 04 100 
2  Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi  04 04 100 
3  Anjali Gupta  04 04 100 
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D. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as under: 
 

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and pursuant to the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”), and the applicable provisions of Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [“Listing 
Regulations”], as applicable, following are the Terms of Reference / Role of the Audit Committee 
[“AC”] of the Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

Roles of Audit Committee: 
1. oversight of the entity’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;  
2. recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors 

of the entity; 
3. approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the 

statutory auditors;  
4. reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report 

thereon before submission to the board for approval, with particular reference to:  
a) matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 

included in the board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 
of the Companies Act, 2013;  

b) changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;  
c) major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management;  
d) significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit 

findings;  
e) compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements;  
f) disclosure of any related party transactions;  
g) modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  

5. reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission 
to the board for approval.  

6. reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 
through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of 
funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus 
/ notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of 
proceeds of a public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions 
placement, and making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in 
this matter;  

7. reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and 
effectiveness of audit process;  

8. approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the entity with related 
parties;  

9. scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  
10.  valuation of undertakings or assets of the entity, wherever it is necessary; 
11. evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 
12. reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, 

adequacy of the internal control systems;  
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13.  reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 
internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 
reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;  

14.  discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;  
15. reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of 
a material nature and reporting the matter to the board; 

16.  discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and 
scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;  

17. to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, 
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and 
creditors;  

18. to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism; 
19. approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate;  
20. Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit 

committee. 
21. reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding 

company in the subsidiary exceeding rupees 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the 
subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances / investments 
existing as on the date of coming into force of this provision.  

22. consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the entity and its shareholders. 

 
The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information: 

1. Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations;  
2. management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory 

auditors;  
3.  internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and  
4. the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall 

be subject to review by the audit committee.  
5. statement of deviations:  

a. quarterly statement of deviation(s) including report of monitoring agency, if 
applicable, submitted to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regulation 32(1).  

b. annual statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer 
document/prospectus/notice in terms of Regulation 32(7). 

 
IV. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

 
A. Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 
Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 
[“Act”] read with rules made thereto and Regulation 19 of Listing Regulations has duly 
constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The composition of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors as on March 31, 2025, was as under: 
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Name Designation Position in 
Committee 

Syed Mohammed Aun 
Safawi 

Director (Independent)  
(Non-Executive) 

Chairman 

Sharad Malhotra Nominee Director 
(Non-Executive) 

Member 

Anjali Gupta Director (Independent) 
 (Non-Executive) 

Member 

 
B. Meeting and attendance during the year. 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met 01 (One) time during the year under 
review on the following date:  
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF NRC COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS PRESENT 

    1. 14.02.2025 03 02 
 

SL. 
No  

Name of the Members Nomination and Remuneration Meeting 
No of the 

meetings which 
the member was 
entitled to attend 

No of Meeting 
Attended 

% 

1  Anjali Gupta  01 01 100 
2  Syed Mohammed Aun 

Safawi  
01 01 100 

3  Sharad Malhotra  01 00 00 
  

C. The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are as under: 

Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the  Company, and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [the “Act”], and the applicable provisions of Securities 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 [“Listing Regulations”], as applicable, following are the Role of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee [“NRC”] of the Board of Directors of the Company: 

 
Roles of Nomination and Remuneration: 

1. formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 
independence of a director and recommend to the board of directors a policy relating 
to, the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees;  

2. For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the 
Board and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and 

46 of 221



 
 

Page 8 of 21 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

capabilities required of an independent director. The person recommended to the 
Board for appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified 
in such description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee 
may:  

a. use the services of an external agencies, if required;  
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to 

diversity; and  
c. consider the time commitments of the candidates.  

3.  formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the 
board of directors;  

4. devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;  
5. identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed 

in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to 
the board of directors their appointment and removal.  

6. whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on 
the basis of the report of performance evaluation of independent directors.  

7. recommend to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior 
management. 

 
Nomination and Remuneration Policy: 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of Listing 
Regulations, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) is responsible for formulating 
the criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes and independence of Directors. The 
NRC is also responsible for recommending to the Board, a policy relating to the remuneration of 
the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. In line with this requirement, 
the Board has adopted the Nomination and Remuneration Policy.  

 
V. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE: 

 
A. Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 20 of the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
[hereinafter “Listing Regulations”], has duly constituted Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee. The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board as on 
March 31, 2025, was as under: 
 

Name Designation Position in Committee 
Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee Director 

(Non-Executive) 
Chairman 

Sharad Malhotra Nominee Director 
(Non-Executive) 

Member 

Anjali Gupta Director (Independent)  Member 
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B. Meetings and attendance during the year: 

 
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met for 01 (One) time during the year under review 
on the following date: 
 

 
 
 
 

SL. 
No 

Name of the Director Stakeholders Relationship Meeting 

No of the 
meetings 
which the 

director was 
entitled to 

attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 01 01 100 
2 Sharad Malhotra 01 00 00 
3 Anjali Gupta 01 01 100 

 
C. The terms of reference of the Stakeholders' Relationship Committee are as under: 

 
Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [“Act”], and the applicable provisions of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
[“Listing Regulations”], as applicable, following are the Terms of Reference [“ToR”]/ Role of the 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee [“SRC”] of the Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

Role of Stakeholders Relationship Committee: 
1. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the entity including complaints 

related to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of 
declared dividends, issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.  

2. Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders. 
3. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the entity in respect of 

various services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.  
4. Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the entity for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend 
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the company. 

5. Resolving grievances of debenture holders related to creation of charge, payment of 
interest/principal, maintenance of security cover and any other covenants. 

 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF SRC 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

1. 14.02.2025 03 02 
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D. The details of the complaints received during the FY 2024-25 and the status of the same 
are as below: 

 
(i) Number of complaints pending as on April 01, 2024: NIL 
(ii) Number of shareholder complaints received: NIL 
(iii) Number of complaints resolved: NIL 
(iv) Number of complaints not resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders: NIL 
(v) Number of complaints pending as on March 31, 2025: NIL 

 

VI. RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE: 
 

A. Composition of Risk Management Committee (RMC): 
 
Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 21 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
[hereinafter “Listing Regulations”], has duly constituted Risk Management Committee (RMC).  
 
The composition of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) as on March 31, 2025, was as 
under: 

Name Designation Position in Committee 
Sharad Malhotra Nominee Director 

(Non-Executive) 
Chairman 

Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee Director 
(Non-Executive) 

Member 

Syed Mohammed Aun 
Safawi 

Director (Independent) 
 (Non-Executive) 

Member 

 
B. Meetings and attendance during the year. 

 
The Risk Management Committee met for 01 (One) time during the year under review on the 
following date:   
 

SL. 
NO. 

DATE OF RMC COMMITTEE 
MEETING 

COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE 
MEMBERS PRESENT 

   1. 08.11.2025 03 02 
 

  

49 of 221



 
 

Page 11 of 21 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

 
SL. 
No 

Name of the Member Risk Management Committee Meeting 
No of the meetings which 
the member was entitled 

to attend 

No of 
Meeting 

Attended 

% 

1 Milind Mukund Joshi 01 01 100 
2 Sharad Malhotra 01 01 100 
3 Syed Mohammed Aun 

Safawi 
01 00 00 

  
C. The terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee (RMC) are as under: 

 
Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [“Act”], and the applicable provisions of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
[“Listing Regulations”], as applicable, following are the Terms of Reference [“ToR”]/ Role of 
the Risk Management Committee (RMC) of the Company; 
 

Role of the Risk Management Committee: 
1. To formulate a detailed risk management policy which shall include:  

d. A framework for identification of internal and external risks specifically faced 
by the entity, in particular including financial, operational, sectoral, 
sustainability (particularly, ESG related risks), information, cyber security risks 
or any other risk as may be determined by the Committee.  

e. Measures for risk mitigation including systems and processes for internal 
control of identified risks.  

f. Business continuity plan.  
 

2. To ensure that appropriate methodology, processes and systems are in place to 
monitor and evaluate risks associated with the business of the Company;  

3. To monitor and oversee implementation of the risk management policy, including 
evaluating the adequacy of risk management systems;  

4. To periodically review the risk management policy, at least once in two years, including 
by considering the changing industry dynamics and evolving complexity;  

5.  To keep the board of directors informed about the nature and content of its 
discussions, recommendations and actions to be taken;  

6. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Risk Officer (if any) 
shall be subject to review by the Risk Management Committee.  

7. The Risk Management Committee shall coordinate its activities with other committees, 
in instances where there is any overlap with activities of such committees, as per the 
framework laid down by the board of directors. 
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VII. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) COMMITTEE: 

 
A. Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with rules made thereto has a duly constituted Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee. The composition of the CSR Committee of the Board as on March 31, 2025, was as 
under: 
 

Name Designation Position in Committee 
Milind Mukund Joshi Nominee Director  

(Non-Executive) 
Member 

Sharad Malhotra Nominee Director  
(Non-Executive) 

Member 

Anjali Gupta Director (Independent) (Non-
Executive) 

Member 

 
B. Meetings and attendance during the year. 

 
The CSR Committee met for 02 (Two) times during the year under review on the following date:  

 

SL. NO. 
DATE OF CSR COMMITTEE 

MEETING 
COMMITTEE 
STRENGTH 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
PRESENT 

   1. 29.05.2024 02 02 
   2. 08.11.2024 03 03 

 
 

 
 
C. The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as under: 

 
Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 [“Act”], and other applicable provisions, following are 
the Terms of Reference [“ToR”]/ Role of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the 
Company: 

SL.  
No  

Name of the Member CSR Committee Meeting 
No of the meetings 
which the member 

was entitled to 
attend 

No of Meeting 
Attended 

%  

1  Milind Mukund Joshi  02 02 100 
2  Sharad Malhotra  02 02 100 
3  Anjali Gupta  01 01 100 
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Role of CSR Committee: 

1. Formulate a CSR Policy indicating the activities as per Schedule VII to the Act; 
2. Recommend the policy to Board of the Company;  
3. Recommend the amount of expenditure on the activities; and  
4. Monitor CSR Policy by way of instituting a transparent monitoring mechanism for 

implementation of CSR projects or programs or activities undertaken by the company 
as provided in Rule 5(2). 

 
VIII. MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS: 

 
A. Your Company, in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 25 of Listing Regulations and 

Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Independent Directors of the 
Board as on March 31, 2025, was as under: 
 

Sl. No Name Designation 
1. Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi Director (Independent)  

(Non-Executive) 
2. Anjali Gupta Director (Independent)  

(Non-Executive) 
 

B. Meetings and attendance during the year: 
 

The Independent Directors met for 01 (One) time during the year under review on the 
following date:  

 
SL. 
NO.  

DATE OF ID MEETING 
DIRECTORS 
STRENGTH 

NO. OF DIRECTORS 
PRESENT 

1.  14.02.2025 02 02 
 

SL.  
No  

Name of the Director  Independent Directors Meeting  
No of the meetings 
which the director 

was entitled to 
attend 

No of Meeting 
Attended 

%   

1  Anjali Gupta  01 01 100 
2  Syed Mohammed Aun Safawi  01 01 100 
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IX. SENIOR MANAGEMENT: 

 
The details of the senior management are provided on Companies website 
https://ascendtele.com/Leadership_teams.php 
  
X. DETAILS OF REMUNERATION PAID DURING THE FY ENDED MARCH 31, 2025, TO THE 

DIRECTORS ARE FURNISHED HEREUNDER: 
 

A. There was no pecuniary relationship or transaction between the Non-Executive Directors and 
the Company during the FY 2024-25. 

 
Criteria for making payments to Non-Executive Directors: - The Independent Directors  receive 
remuneration by way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committees thereof and 
commission as decided by the Board. The sitting fee as decided by the Board is reasonable 
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate Independent Directors aligned to the 
requirements of the Company (taking into consideration the challenges faced by the 
Company and its future growth imperatives). However, it is ensured that the amount of such 
fees does not exceed the amount prescribed by the appropriate authority from time to time. 
The Company has not paid any remuneration/sitting fees/commission/any other amounts to 
the Non-Executive Directors. 

XI. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 
 

A. Location and Time of Last Three Annual General Meeting (AGMs): 
 

Financial 
Year 

Date of AGM Time Location 

2023-24 28th June, 2024 04:00 PM Corporate Office: Sangeeta 
Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, 
Indiranagar, Bangalore – 560038  
 

2022-23 28th June, 2023 12:00 PM Corporate Office: Sangeeta 
Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, 
Indiranagar, Bangalore – 560038  
 

2021–22 10th August, 2022 12:00 PM Corporate Office: Sangeeta 
Towers #3, 80 Feet Road, 
Indiranagar, Bangalore – 560038  
 

 
  

53 of 221



 
 

Page 15 of 21 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

 
B. whether any special resolutions passed in the previous three annual general meetings: 

 
Yes, The company has passed the following special resolutions in the previous three annual 
general meeting: 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Date of Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) 

Agenda of the meeting 

1. 28.06.2023 (Twenty First 
AGM) 

Approval for Alteration of Articles of 
Association (AOA) of the Company. 

 
 

C. whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot: 
 

No special resolution was passed via postal ballot in the last financial year. Therefore, is no 
record of any special resolution passed via postal ballot in 2024. All resolutions were passed 
during the AGM by show of hands. 

 
XII. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 
A. Quarterly Results: 
 

The Company publishes its quarterly financial results regularly in compliance with SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations. These include both 
standalone and consolidated financial statements, prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The results are approved by the Board and reviewed by the 
Audit Committee before publication. 

 
B. Newspapers Where Results Are Normally Published 
 

Ascend Telecom typically publishes its financial results in ‘Financial Express’. 
 

These publications ensure wide dissemination of financial information to stakeholders 
 

C. Website Where Displayed 
 

All financial results and disclosures are made available on the Company’s official website: 
https://www.ascendtele.com 

 
The Financial Information section hosts quarterly, half-yearly, and annual results, along with 
auditor reports and other statutory disclosures. 

 
D. Whether It Also Displays Official News Releases 

 
Yes, the Company’s website also includes official news releases, board meeting outcomes, 
and regulatory filings under the SEBI disclosure requirements 
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E. Presentations Made to Institutional Investors or Analysts 

 
As of the latest disclosures, no specific investor or analyst presentations have been published 
on the website. However, the Company ensures that all material information is disclosed to 
the stock exchange and made available on its website to maintain transparency and equal 
access to information. 

 
XIII. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION 

 
A. Annual General Meeting – Date, Time and Venue 
 

The last Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on: 
 
 

Date June 28, 2024 
Time 04:00 PM (IST) 
Venue: Corporate Office of the company situated at Sangeeta Towers #3, 

80 Feet Road, Indiranagar, Bangalore – 560038. 
 

B. Financial Year 
 

The financial year of the Company runs from 1st April to 31st March. The latest audited 
financial statements are for the year ending 31st March 2025. 

  
C. Dividend Payment Date 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, during the year in their meeting held on August 9, 
2024, November 8, 2024, and by circular resolution on February 20, 2025, declared an interim 
dividend of Rs.35.16 per share (i.e., 352% on the face value of Rs.10 per share), Rs.6.59 per 
share (i.e., 66% on the face value of Rs.10 per share) and Rs 16.48 per share (i.e., 165% on the 
face value of Rs.10 per share) aggregating to Rs.1,600 million, Rs.300 million and Rs.750 
million, respectively for the financial year 2024-25 and the same was paid during the year.  

 
The Board of Directors of Tower Vision India Private Limited (TVI) (now merged with Company) 
,in their meeting held on June 12, 2024, September 25, 2024 and November 11, 2024, declared 
an interim dividend of Rs 2 per share (i.e., 20% on the face value of Rs.10 per share), Rs.1 per 
share (i.e., 10 % on the face value of Rs.10 per share) and Rs.1 per share (i.e., 10 % on the face 
value of Rs.10 per share) aggregating to Rs.131 million, Rs. 65.5 million and Rs.65.5 million 
respectively (consequent to elimination of inter-company transactions) for the financial year 
2024-25 and the same was paid to non-controlling shareholders who are also shareholders of 
our Company) of TVI ( now merged with Company) during the period. 
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D. Stock Exchange Listing and Annual Listing Fee 

 
Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited is not listed on any stock exchange for equity 
shares, as it is a private limited company. However, its Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) 
are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) as of June 12, 2023. 

 
• Stock Exchange: Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 
 
• Listing Fee: The Company has confirmed payment of the annual listing fee to BSE for its 
                             listed NCDs. 
 

E. Suspension of Trading: 
 

The Company’s equity shares are not listed on any stock exchange; hence no suspension of 
trading applies. However, its Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) are listed on the Bombay 
Stock Exchange (BSE) and remain actively traded. 

 
F. Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents: 

 
As a private limited company, Ascend Telecom does not have publicly traded equity shares. 
However, the Company has appointed KFin Technologies Limited as its Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agent for both equity and debentures. 

G. Share Transfer System 
 

Since the Company is privately held, share transfers are governed internally through board 
approvals and shareholder agreements. For listed NCDs, transfers are handled through 
depository participants in electronic form.  

 
H. Distribution of Shareholding: 

 
Shareholding of the company as on 31st March 2025 are as follows: 

 
Name of the Shareholder Percentage of holding 
GIP EM Ascend Pte Ltd 43.19% 
GIP EM Ascend 2 Pte Ltd 35.66% 
India Infrastructure Fund II 21.15% 

 
 

I. Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity: 
 

• Equity Shares: The company’s shares are fully dematerialised. 
• Debt Instruments (NCDs): All Non-Convertible Debentures are fully dematerialized. 
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J. Outstanding Instruments: 

 
• The Company has outstanding Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs). 
• The company has not issued any Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) or American 

Depository Receipts (ADRs), and therefore, does not have any outstanding instruments. 
   

K. Address for Correspondence: 
 

Registered Office 
Address: 

Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 & 119 / 1 / 4F / Unit No.10, 
4th Floor, Eden Amsri Square, St John’s Road, Hyderabad, 
Secunderabad, Telangana- 500003, India. 
 

Corporate Office 
Address: 

Sangeeta Towers, #3, 80 Feet Road Indiranagar, Bangalore- 
560038, India. 
 

Email ID info@ascendtele.com 
Contact No. +91 080 6116 4555 

 
 

L. Credit Ratings: 
 

Ascend Telecom received the following ratings from CARE Ratings for March 2025: 
 

Facilities/Instruments Amount (₹ crore) Rating1 Rating Action 
Long-term bank 

facilities 
2,280.00 (Enhanced 

from 815.00) 
CARE AA-; Stable Reaffirmed 

Short-term bank 
facilities 

10.00 CARE A1+ Reaffirmed 

Non-convertible 
debentures 

1,169.00 (Reduced 
from 1,236.00) 

CARE A+; Stable Reaffirmed 

 
 

XIV. OTHER DISCLOSURES: 
 

A. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential 
conflict with the interests of listed entity at large: 

 
Details relating to related party transactions during the period under review are provided in 
ANNEXURE IV (AOC-2) and forms part of the Board’s report.  
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B. Non-Compliance and Penalties 
 

Actions taken by SEBI or Stock Exchange(s), if any:  
 

No action has been taken against the listed entity, its promoters, directors, or subsidiaries by 
SEBI or the Stock Exchanges. However, demand notices have been received from stock 
exchange for delays in submitting reports, as specified below: 
 
1. The Company has delayed intimating the SEBI regarding meeting of shareholders within 

the due date i.e. within a day from the circulating the Notice for Annual General Meeting 
for the financial year 2023-24 held on 28.06.2024 and the Company has delayed in 
submission of annual report within the due date with BSE Limited i.e. within 60 days from 
the closure of financial year. The same was furnished on 28.06.2024.  
 
There has been a delay in submitting the said report to the stock exchange. Consequently, 
the Company has received a notice from the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE). 
 
In this regard, the Company has duly remitted an amount of INR 71,980/- towards the 
penalty imposed for non-submission of reports under SEBI Regulations. 
 

C. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy: 
 

The Company has adopted a whistleblower mechanism for directors and employees to report 
concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Company’s 
code of conduct and ethics.   

 
D. Compliance with Mandatory and Non-Mandatory Requirements: 

 
The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements under SEBI (LODR) Regulations. 
Adoption of non-mandatory requirements is reviewed periodically by the Board. 

 
E. Web Link for Material Subsidiaries Policy: 
 

The company does not have any material subsidiaries. Therefore, the Material Subsidiaries 
Policy is not applicable. 
 

F. Web Link for Related Party Transactions Policy: 
 

The Related Party Transactions Policy is not available on the company’s website and hence 
no web link is provided. 
 

  

58 of 221



 
 

Page 20 of 21 
Registered Office: Unit NO.10, New Municipal NO. 9-1-87 & 119/1/4/F, 4th Floor, “Eden Amsri Square ” 

Secunderabad, Telangana – 500003. Ph.No.040-42205020 
Email: Info@ascendtele.com  Website: WWW.ascendtele.com  CIN: U70102TG2002PTC038713 

 

 
G. Utilization of Funds Raised: 
 

The company has not raised any funds during the FY 2024-25 through public issue, rights issue, 
preferential allotment, or qualified institutional placement and therefore, no funds have been 
utilized. 

 
H. Certificate on Director Eligibility: 
 

A certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice confirms that none of the directors have 
been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors by SEBI, MCA, 
or any statutory authority. 

 
I. Certificate from Company Secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board 

of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing 
as directors of companies by the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
statutory authority: 
 
Certificate is enclosed and part of Corporate Governance Report. 

 
J. Board Recommendations: 
 

During FY 2024–25, the Board accepted all recommendations made by its committees. There 
were no deviations from committee recommendations requiring disclosure. 
 

K. Statutory Auditor Fees: 
 

Total fees paid to the statutory auditor and its network firms on a consolidated basis for FY 
2024–25: 
(i) Audit Fees: ₹08 Million 
(ii) Other Services: ₹02 Million 
(iii) Total: ₹11 Million  

 
L.  Sexual Harassment Disclosures 
 

The Company is committed to provide a safe and conducive work environment to its 
employees. The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the 
requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 
& Redressal) Act, 2013.   

  
The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed of during 
the year:  

  
(a) Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the year – NIL  
(b) Number of complaints received during the year - NIL  
(c) Number of complaints disposed of during the year – NIL  
(d) Number of cases pending for more than 90 days– NIL  
(e) Number of cases pending at the end of the year – NIL  
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The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of the Internal 
Complaints Committee (‘ICC’) under the POSH Act.  The ICC has been set up to redress 
complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, 
temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.  

 
M. Loans and Advances to Interested Companies 
 

There were no loans or advances in the nature of loans to firms or companies in which 
directors are interested during FY 2024–25. 

 
Further, the investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 form part of 
the notes to the financial statements.  
 

N.  Material Subsidiaries 
 

The company has a subsidiary; however, it does not meet the threshold specified under 
Regulation 24 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations to be classified as a material subsidiary (i.e., its 
income or net worth does not exceed 20% of the consolidated figures.) Therefore, the entity 
does not have any material subsidiary. 

 
Pursuant to section 129 of the Act, the statement containing salient features of the financial 
statements of Company’s subsidiary is given in ANNEXURE – II (Form AOC -1) forms part of 
the Board’s Report. The statement also provides details of the performance and financial 
position of the subsidiary, along with the changes that occurred, during the financial year 
2024-25.   

 
XV. THE COMPANY HAS COMPLIED WITH THE APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN 

REGULATION 17 TO 27 OF THE SEBI LODR REGULATIONS. 
 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 
 
Sd/-      Sd/- 
________________    ____________________ 
Sharad Malhotra             Milind Mukund Joshi             
Nominee Director                             Nominee Director             
DIN: 02192770                                         DIN: 02685576 
 
 
Date: July 09, 2025                                                        
Place: Mumbai                     
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ANNEXURE I 
COMPANY’S POLICIES 

 
Our corporate governance is to ensure fairness for every stakeholder – our employees, 
customers, investors, business partners or vendors, the community, and the state 
governments in which we operate. Our Corporate governance is about maximizing 
shareholder value legally, ethically, and on a sustainable basis. We believe that sound 
corporate governance is critical in enhancing and retaining investor trust. It is a reflection of 
our culture, our policies, our relationship with stakeholders, and our commitment to 
values. The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as 
amended, mandates the formulation of certain policies for all listed companies. 
 
The corporate governance policies are available on the Company’s website, at 
https://ascendtele.com/Committees_and_Polices.php 
 
As a part of the overall governance framework, the Board of Directors reviews all the 
policies from time to time. 
Following are the policies adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

• Policy on Code of Conduct for Independent Directors 
• Policy on Code of Conduct of Employees 
• Policy on Corporate Social Responsibility Policy 
• Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment Policy 
• Policy on Whistleblower Policy 
• Policy on Preservation of documents 
• Policy on Prohibition of Insider Trading 
• Policy on Related Party Transactions 

 
 
For and on behalf of the board of directors 
For Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited 
 
Sd/-      Sd/- 
 

Sharad Malhotra Milind Mukund Joshi 
Nominee Director Nominee Director 
DIN: 02192770 DIN: 02685576 
 
 
Date: July 09, 2025  
Place: Mumbai  
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Annexure II 

Form AOC-1 
 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of 

subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiary 

 
(Information in respect of the subsidiary to be presented with amounts in INR. in Thousand) 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
1. Name of the subsidiary Demello Telepower 

Private Limited 
2. The date since when subsidiary 

was acquired 
01st August 2018 

3. Reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding 
company’s reporting period 

NA 
01st April to 31st March 

4. Reporting currency and 
Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant financial 

year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

NA 

5. Share capital 1,000 

6. Reserves & surplus 2,26,488 
7. Total assets 8,64,000 
8. Total Liabilities 6,36,512 
9. Investments -- 

10. Turnover 3,25,875 
           11. Profit before taxation 1,26,870 
           12. Provision for taxation 

Current tax 
Deferred tax charge/ (credit) 

 
37,415 
(9,631) 

           13. Profit after taxation 99,086 
         14. % of shareholding 100% 

 
Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations: NIL  
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year:  

Tower Vision India Private Limited (“Transferor Company”), a subsidiary, was amalgamated 
with Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (“Transferee Company”) pursuant to the 
order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench, dated 24th 
January 2025. 
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 
 

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to 
Associate Companies and Joint Ventures 

 
Name of associates/Joint Ventures NA 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NA 
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was associated or 

acquired 
NA 

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on the 
year end 

NA 

a) No. NA 
b) Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture (Including 

Premium) 
NA 

c) Extend of Holding % NA 
4. Description of how there is significant influence NA 

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA 
6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per the latest audited 

Balance Sheet 
NA 

7. Profit/Loss for the year NA 
i. Considered in Consolidation NA 

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation NA 
1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations: NA 
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the 

year: NA 
 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 
 
  Sd/-         Sd/- 

__________________ 
Sharad Malhotra 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 02192770 
 
 
Date: July 09, 2025                                                     
Place: Bangalore 

__________________ 
Milind Mukund Joshi 
Nominee Director 
DIN: 02685576 
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ANNEXURE III 
 

THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES 
 

1. Brief outline of CSR Policy of the Company: 
 

Our CSR Policy aims to provide a dedicated approach to community development in the areas 
of education, skill development, healthcare, women empowerment, environmental 
sustainability, and rural development. Through the promotion of education and skill 
development, we empower individuals to reach their full potential. Our commitment to 
extends to bolstering social infrastructure, ensuring health and education facilities. 
Environmental protection and biodiversity preservation are integral facets of our sustainability 
initiatives. Furthermore, we take pride in supporting vulnerable populations, offering 
assistance to cancer patients and individuals with disabilities, fostering a more inclusive and 
compassionate society.  

 
The objective is to make significant and meaningful contribution with measurable benefits. 
Our CSR policy focus areas aim to be aligned with the activities prescribed in Schedule VII 
read with Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
2. Composition of CSR Committee: 

 
Sl. 
No. 

Name of 
Director 

Designation/ 
Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held     
during the year 

Number of meetings 
of CSR Committee 

attended during the 
year 

1 Milind Mukund 
Joshi 

Nominee Director 02 02 

2 Sharad 
Malhotra 

Nominee Director 02 02 

3 Anjali Gupta  Director 
(Independent) 

01 01 

 
Dr. Harry CD, CPO of the Company, will be coordinating the CSR activities on behalf of the 
management. 

 
3. Weblink of CSR activities of the company: 

 
The Company has a website i.e., www.ascendtele.com and the details of Composition of CSR 
committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board of Directors of the Company 
shall be published on the website. 
 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects: 
 
As per Rule 8(3) of the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules, 2014, the following class of companies 
are mandatorily required to conduct impact assessment: 
 
(i) Companies with minimum average CSR obligation of INR 10 Crores (Indian Rupees Ten 
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Crores Only) or more in the immediately preceding 3 financial years; and  
(ii) Companies that have CSR projects with outlays of minimum INR 1 crore (Indian Rupees 

One Crore Only) and which have been completed not less than 1 year before undertaking 
impact assessment. 
 
The average CSR Obligation in the three immediately preceding financial years of the 
Company is less than INR 10 Crores (Indian Rupees Ten Crores Only) and the outlay of 
the CSR Projects is less than INR 1 Crore (Indian Rupees One Crore Only). Hence, Impact 
Assessment is not applicable. 

 
5.  

a) Average net profit of the company as per section 135 (5): INR 2,12,14,22,311/- 
 

b) Two percent of the average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): INR 
4,24,28,446/- 

 
c) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous 

financial years: Nil 
 

d) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: 3,47,108/- 
 

e) Total CSR obligation for the financial year: INR 4,20,81,338/- 
 

6.  
a) Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other than Ongoing 

Project): INR. 4,26,66,376/-  
 

b) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
 

c) Amount spent on impact assessment, if applicable: Nil 
 

d) Total amount spent for the Financial Year [(a) + (b) + (c)]: INR. 4,26,66,376/-  
 

e) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:  
 

 
Total Amount 
Spent for the 

Financial Year 
(in Rs.) 

Amount Unspent (in Rs.) 

Total Amount transferred to 
Unspent CSR Account as 

per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under  Schedule VII as per second proviso to 

section 135(5). 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 
Name of the 

Fund 
Amount. Date of 

transfer. 
 

INR. 4,26,66,376/- 
 

NIL 
 

NA 
 

NA 
 

NA 
 

NA 
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f) Excess amount for set off, if any 
 

Sl. 
No 

Particulars Amount (in Rs.) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the 
company as per section 135(5) 

INR 4,24,28,446/- 

(ii) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, 
if any: 

INR 3,47,108/- 

(iii) Total CSR obligation for the financial year [(i)-(ii)] INR 4,20,81,338/- 
(iv) Total amount spent for the Financial Year INR 4,26,66,376/- 
(v) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(iv) - 

(iii)] 
INR  5,85,038/- 

(vi) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or 
programs or activities of the previous financial 
years, if any 

Nil 

(vii) Amount available for set off in succeeding 
Financial Years [(iii)-(iv)] 

INR 5,85,038/- 

 
7. Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sl. 
No
. 

Precedi
ng 
Financi
al Year 

Amount 
transferr
ed to 
Unspent 
CSR 
Account 
under 
sub- 
section 
(6) of 
section 
135 (in 
Rs.) 

Balanc
e 
Amou
nt in 
Unspe
nt 
CSR 
Accou
nt 
under 
sub- 
sectio
n (6) of 
sectio
n 135 
(in Rs.) 

Amoun
t Spent 
in the 
Financi
al 
Year (in 
Rs) 

Amount 
transferred to a 
Fund as 
specified under 
Schedule VII as 
per 
second proviso 
to sub- 
section (5) of 
section 135, if 
any 

Amount 
remainin
g to be 
spent in 
succeedi
ng 
Financial 
Years (in 
Rs.) 

Deficien
cy, if any, 

Amou
nt 
(in Rs) 

Date 
of 
Transf
er  

1. 2023-24 NA Nil NA NA NA NA NA 
2. 2022-23 NA Nil NA NA NA NA NA 
3. 2021-22 NA Nil NA NA NA NA NA 

 
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social 

Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year 
 
Yes  / No 
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If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created/ acquired 
____________________________________ 
 
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate 
Social Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year 
 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) 
Sl. 
No. 

Short 
particulars 
of the 
property or 
asset(s) 
[including 
complete 
address 
and 
location of 
the 
property] 

Pin code 
of the 
property 
or 
asset(s) 

Date of 
Creation 

Amount 
of CSR 
amount 
spent 

Details of entity/ Authority/ 
beneficiary of the registered owner 

CSR 
Registration 
Number  

Name  Registered 
Address 

01. NA -- -- -- -- -- -- 
 
 

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net 
profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 

 
 
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 

 
 
 
Sd/-      Sd/-     
_________________________   ____________________ 
Sharad Malhotra             Milind Mukund Joshi             
Nominee Director                             Nominee Director             
DIN: 02192770                                                                 DIN: 02685576 
 
 
Date: July 09, 2025                                                  
Place: Bangalore                                                             
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Annexure IV 
Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto  

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NIL 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions  
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions  
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if 

any  
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions  
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board  
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:  
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 

first proviso to section 188(1). 
  

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: (As 
disclosed in Table A, attached) 
 
All the transactions entered with Related Parties for the period under review were on arm’s 
length basis and in ordinary course of business. The details of the related party transactions 
are set out in the notes to the Financial Statements. Since these transactions are in the 
ordinary course of business and are at arm’s length basis, the approval of the Board is not 
mandatory. However, as a matter of abundant caution, approval of the Board has been 
obtained from time to time.  
 
Further, no material contracts or arrangements or transactions referred to in subsection (1) 
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, were entered by the Company with any Related 
Party, during the period under review. 
 

3. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not in the ordinary course of business – 
NIL 
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions  
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions  
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any 
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’  
(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board 
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any 

Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under 
first proviso to section 188. 
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Table A 

 
 

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
For ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED, 
 

 
Sd/-      Sd/-      
________________________   _____________________ 
Sharad Malhotra             Milind Mukund Joshi             
Nominee Director                             Nominee Director             
DIN: 02192770                          DIN: 02685576 
 
Date: July 09, 2025                                                
Place: Bangalore                                             
 
Note: Please note that the disclosure of related party transaction in Form No. AOC-2 is made, as per 
the latest audited Financial Statement of the Company for the year ending 31st March 2025. It 
includes disclosure as per AS-18 transactions.  

Sl. 
No. 

Name of the 
Related Party 

Nature of 
Relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 
arrangements/transactions 

FY2024-25 
Amount 

(INR In Million) 
01. Demello Telepower 

Private Limited 
Subsidiary Management Fees 20 

Dividend Received 300 

02. Sushil Kumar 
Chaturvedi (Chief 
Executive Officer) 

Key Management 
Personnel 

Managerial Remuneration 45 

03. GIP EM Ascend 2 
Pte. Ltd 

Subsidiary of 
Holding Company  
 

Repayment of Debentures 668 

Interest expense on debentures 1,636 

Interim Dividend paid 1,207               

04. India Infrastructure 
Fund II 

Enterprise having 
Significant 
influence  

Interim Dividend paid 560 

05. GIP EM Ascend PTE 
Ltd 

Holding Company Interim Dividend paid 1,145 

06. Anjali Gupta  Independent 
Director 

Commission and sitting fees 2 

07. Syed Mohammed 
Aun Safawi 

Independent 
Director 

Commission and sitting fees 1 

69 of 221



Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

To, 
The Members, 

Annexure V 

[Pursuant to section 204() of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

Form No. MR-3 

4th Floor, Eden Amsri Square, St Jhons Road, 

ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 & 119/1 /4F/Unit No.10, 

Secunderabad - 500003, Telangana, India 
CIN: U70102TG2002PTCO38713 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

i) 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025 

ii) 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private 
Limited (hereinafter called the "Company") for the Financial Year ended 31st March 2025. 

ii) 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile : +91 7259700201 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

iv) 

E-Mail: csshariff2011 @gmail.com 

Based on my verification of the Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited's books. 

papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the 
Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March 2025. 
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, paperS, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited Company for the financial 
year ended on 31" March 2025, according to the provisions of: 

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (*SCRA') and the rules made 
thereunder -Not applicable to the Company for the financial year under review. 

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed thereunder; 

C.P. No. 

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (*FEMA') and the rules and regulations 
made thereunder to the extent of BogA Drect Investment, However, during the 

11103 

WCina 
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S 
Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

V) 

vi) 

vii) 

viii) 

ix) 

year under the review there were no transactions with respect to Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; and 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore -560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile : +91 7259700201 
E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021. 

The following Regulations and Gidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'), however, during the year under 
the review there were no transactions by Company during the Audit Period: 

a) Securities Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011. 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018. 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and 
dealing with client; 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 and 

) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy-back of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018. ("the Buyback Regulations"). 

Laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as 
identified by the management: 

a) The Telecom Regulatory Authority of India Act, 1997 
b) The Information Technology Act, 2000 
c) The Indian Telecommunications Act, 2003 

Other laws to the extent applicable to the Company as per the representations made 
by the Company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

ASHAR 
CrR.No. 

QUicing Compaf 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

a) Secretarial Standards with regard to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1') 
and Genceral Meetings ('SS-2*) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries 
of India pursuant to section 118 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, and 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore- 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 
E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: Further, the company falls under 
*high value debt listed entity', accordingly, regulations 15 to 27 of The 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is applicable on a 'comply or explain' basis 
until March 31, 2025. 

During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the provisions of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. as mentioned above subject to the following 
observations: 

1. The Company has delayed intimating the SEBI regarding meeting of shareholders 
within the due date i.e. within a day from the circulating the Notice for Annual General 
Meeting for the financial year 2023-24 held on 28.06.2024 and the Company has 
delayed in submission of annual report within the due date with BSE Limited i.e. within 
60 days from the closure of financial year. The same was furnished on 28.06.2024. 

There has been a delay in submitting the said report to the stock exchange. 
Consequently, the Company has received a notice from the Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE). 

In this regard, the Company has duly remitted an amount of INR 71,980/- towards the 
penalty imposed for non-submission of reports under SEBI Regulations. 

I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013. All the Directors who are on the Board of the Company during 
the review period are the Non-Executive Directors comprising of two Nominee Directors and 
two Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act as listed out in Annexure-B. 

Adequate notice is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and consent for the shorter notice is obtained 
from the Directors, wherever required, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the Meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting, to the extent practicatble. 

As per the minutes of the meeting duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of 
the Board were unanimous, and no dissenting vieghabeen recorded. 

C.P: No. 

acticing Comp 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

T further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, and guidelines. 

I further report that during the reporting period there were specific events/actions having a 
major bearing on Company's affairs in pursuance of the above-referred laws, rules, regulations, 
guidelines, standards, as detailed below: 

a The Tower Vision India Private Limited (Transferor Company) was amalgamated with 

Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited (Transferee Company), vide order 
passed by National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad vide order Dated 24h January 
2025. For the Scheme to be effective, the certified copy of the order from the National 
Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad, once submitted to the Registrar of Companies 
(RoC) by filing Form INC-28. 

b. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the authorized share capital of the Transferor 
Company combined with Transferee Company and Transferee Company's authorized 
share capital in terms of its MOA and AOA automatically stand enhanced without any 
further act, instrument or deed. The Company's Authorised share capital has been 
increased from INR.765 Cr to INR.1,690 Cr. 

Date: 29.05.2025 
Place: Bangalore 

Rateela 

C.P.No. 

11103 

Comna 

Rafeeulla Shariff 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No: FCS9367 
CP No:11103 

Peer Review No.:3190/2023 
UDIN: F009367G000497866 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Annexures A 

ASCEND TELECOM INFRASTRUCTURE PRIVATE LIMITED 
Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 && 119/1/4F / Unit No. 10, 
4th Floor, Eden Amsri Square, St Jhons Road, 
Secunderabad - 500003, Telangana, India 

CIN: U70102TG2002PTCO38713 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 
Accounts of the company. 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

Date: 29,05.2025 

Place: Bangalore 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 
of the company. 

Peteea 
C.PNo. 

,11103 

Rafeeulla ShaFif 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Membership No: FCS9367 
CP No:11103 

Peer Review No.: 3190/2023 
UDIN: FO09367GO00497866 
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S 
Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Sr. Name of the Director & 
No DIN 

1 

Details of changes in the composition of the Board of Directors of the Company during 

2. 

Anjali Gupta 
DIN: 00781921 

Syed Mohammed Aun 
Safawi 

Annexures-B 

DIN: 02993292 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

the period under review: 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

Change in 
Designation 

Appointment/ 
Cessation/Others 

Change in 
Designation 

Designation 

Director 

(Independent) 
Director 

(Independent) 

Date of 
Appointment/ 
Cessation 

25th April 2024 

25h April 2024 

EULLAA SHAR 

11103 

acticing Conpany 

Page 6 of6 
75 of 221



S 
Rafeeulla Shariff BaM, MBA, Fcs 
Practicing Conmpany Secretary 

To, 

Secretarial Compliance Report of M/s. Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2025 

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 

Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited 

Unit No 10, New Municipal No- 9-1-87 & 119/1/4F/ Unit No.10, 
4th Floor, Eden Amsri Square, St Jhons Road, 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore -560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 
E-Mail: csshariff2011 @gmail.com 

Secunderabad- 500003, Telangana, India. 

T have examined: 

(a) all the documents and records made available to us and explanation provided by Ascend 
Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited ("the debt listed entity"), 

(b) the filings/ submissions made by the listed entity to the Stock Exchanges, 
(c) website of the listed entity, 
(d) any other document/ filing, as may be relevant, which has been relied upon to make this 

Report. 

for the financial year ended 31st March 2025 (�Review Period") in respect of compliance with the 
provisions of: 

(a) the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ("SEBI Act") and the regulations, 
circulars, guidelines issued thereunder; and 

(b) the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA"), rules made thereunder and the 
regulations, circulars, guidelines issued thereunder by the SEBl; 

The specific Regulations, (including amendments, modifications from time to time) whose 
provisions and the circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, have been examined, include: -

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (LODR) Regulations, 2015; and amendments from 
time to time. 

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018; and amendments from time to time. (Not applicable to the company 
during the review period) 

(c) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regulations, 2011; (Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not 
applicable to the company during the review period) 

(e) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the company during the review period) 

() Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) 
Regulations, 2021; CASHA (E) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohitbioot nsitan Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

C.P. No. 

11103 

Company 
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Sr 

No 

Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Compamy Secretary 

Compliance 

and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder: 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participant) Regulations, 
2018; 

Sr. No. 

Based on the above examination, I hereby report that, during the Review Period: 

(a) Ascend Telecom Infrastructure Private Limited, the debt listed entity, has complied with the 
provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in 
respect of matters specified below: 

Requirement 
(Regulations/Circulars/Guidelines 
including specific clause) 

Regulation 50(2) Delay in 
furnishing intimation about 
meeting of shareholders 
or holders of non-convertible 
securities. 

Regulation 53(2) non-submission of 
annual report within the period 
prescribed under this regulation. 

Regulation/ 
Circular No. 

Regulation 
50(2) of SEBI 

LODR 

Regulations, 
2015 

Observations/ Remarks of the 

Practicing Company Secretary 
(PCS) in the previous reports) 

Regulation 
53(2) of SEBI 

LODR 
Regulations, 
2015 

previous reports: 

the 

Deviations 

Secretarial 

Compliance 

The Company 

has delayed 

furnishing 
intimation about 

meeting 
shareholders 

The Company 
has delayed in 

furnishing 
annual report 
within the period 
prescribed 
under 

regulation. 

Observations made in 

31 March 2025 

report for the year 
ended 

the 

Action 

taken 

by 

BSE 

BSE 

Compliance 

Requirement 
(Regulations/ 
circulars/ 

guidelines 

TVpe 
action 

including 
specific clause) 

Notice 
received 

from SEBI 
dated 

October 30, 
2024, 
imposing 
penalty of 
Rs. 5,900/ 
(Rs. 5,000 
18% GST) 

Notice 

received 
from SEBI 

dated 

October 30 
2024, 
imposing 
penalty of 
Rs. 66,080/ 
[Rs. 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore -560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile : +91 7259700201 
E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

56,000/ 
(2000*28) 
18% GST) 

Details 

Violation 

NOTAPPLICABLE 

The Company 

has delayed 

intimating the 
SEBI regarding 
meeting 
shareholders 
within the due 
date i.e. within a 

day from the 
circulating the 
Notice for 

Annual General 

Meeting for the 
financial year 

2023-24 held on 
28.06.2024. 

The Company 

has delayed in 
submission of 

annual report 
within the period 
prescribed 
under 

regulation. 

Details of violation / 

Deviations and 

actions 

taken /penalty 

imposed, if any, on 
the listed entity 

of 

this 

Fine 

amount 

(In INR) 
(Including 
GST) 

Remedial 

actions, 

if any, 
taken by 
the listed 

entity 

5,900/ 

(b) The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in 

66,080/ 

LLA SH 

DPNO. 
11103 

Management 

of the practising Response 

Company Secretary 
(PCS) 

icing Compar 

Observation/Remarks 

The Company has 

delayed intimating the 
SEBI regarding 
meeting of shareholders 
within the due date ie 

within a day from the 

circulating the Notice 
for Annual General 

Meeting for the financial 
year 2023-24 held on 
28.06.2024. The same 
was furnished on 

28.06.2024. 

The Company has 

delayed in submission 
of annual report within 
the due date with BSE 
Limited i.e. within 60 

days from the closure of 
financial year. 
However, the Company 
submitted the annual 

report on 28/06/2024 to 
BSE Limited. 

Comments 

the PCS 

on the 
actions 

taken by 
the listed 

entity 

The entity will 

RemarkS 

ensure 

compliance 
with all the 

regulations 
within 

stipulated 
time in future. 

The entity will 
ensure 

the 

compliance 
with all the 

regulations 
within 

stipulated 
time in future. 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

Note: 

1 

2. Add the list of all observations in the reports pertaining to the periods prior to the previous 
year in case the entity has not taken sufficient steps to address the concerns raised/ 
observations. 

Sr. 

No 

1. 

2. 

3 

4 

Provide the list of all the observations in the report for the previous year along with the 
actions taken by the listed entity on those observations. 

(c) I hereby report that, during the review period the compliance status of the listed entity 
with the following requirements: 

Particulars 

Secretarial Standards: 

The compliances of the listed entity are 
in accordance with the applicable 
Secretarial Standards (SS) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of 
India (|CSI). 
Adoption and timely updation of the 
Policies: 

" All applicable policies under SEBI 
Regulations are adopted with the 
approval of board of directors of the 
listed entities. 

" All the policies are in conformity with 
SEBI Regulations and have been 

reviewed & updated on time, as per the 
regulations/ circulars/guidelines issued 

by SEBI. 
Maintenance and disclosures on 
Website: 

" The listed entity is maintaining a 
functional website. 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

Timely dissemination of the 

documents/ information under 
separate section on the website. 

Web-links provided in annual 

corporate governance reports under 
Regulation 27(2) are accurate and 
specifiC which redirects to the relevant 
document(s)/section of the website. 

Disqualification of Director(s): 
None of the director(s) of the listed 
entity is/ are disqualified under Section 

Compliance 
Status (Yes/ 

No/NA) 
Yes 

Yes 

acticing 

Yes 

Yes 

AC.P.No. 

44403 

omnan 

Observations/ 

Remarks by PCS* 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Conpany Secretary 

5. 

6 

7 

8 

164 of Companies Act, 2013 as 

confirmed by the listed entity. 
Details related to subsidiaries of 
listed entities have been examined 
W.r.t.: 

(a) ldentification of material subsidiary 
companies. 
(b) Disclosure requirement of material 
as well as other subsidiaries. 

Preservation of Documents: 

The listed entity is preserving and 
maintaining records as prescribed 

under SEBI Regulations and disposal of 
records as per policy of preservation of 
documents and archival policy 

prescribed under SEBI LODR 

Regulations, 2015. 
Performance Evaluation: 
The listed entity has conducted 

performance evaluation of the board, 
independent directors and the 

committees at the start of every 
financial year/during the financial year 
as prescribed in SEBI Regulations. 
Related party transactions: 

(a) The Listed Entity has obtained 
prior approval of Audit 

committee for all Related party 
transaction. 

(b) In case no prior approval 
obtained, the listed entity shall 
provide detailed reasons along 
with confirmation whether the 

transactions were subsequently 
approved/ratified/rejected 
the audit committee 

by 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 
E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

NA 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

C.P.No. 

11103 

The listed entity has a 
subsidiary; however, 
it does not meet the 

threshold specified 

under Regulation 24 
of the SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations to be 

classified 

material subsidiary 

(.e., its income or net 
Worth does not 

exceed 20% of the 
Consolidated 

figures.) Therefore, 
the entity does not 
have any material 
subsidiary 
Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

as 
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Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

9. 

10. 

11. 

12. 

13. 

Disclosure of events or information: 
The listed entity has provided all the 
required disclosure(s) under Regulation 
30 along with Schedule IIl of SEBI LODR 
Regulations, 2015 within the time limits 
prescribed thereunder. 

Prohibition of Insider Trading: 
The listed entity is in compliance with 
Regulation 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibition 
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. 
Actions taken by SEB1 or Stock 
Exchange(s), if any: 
No action(s) has been taken against the 

listed entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 
subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges (including under the 
Standard Operating Procedures issued 
by SEBI through various circulars) under 
SEBI Regulations and circulars/ 

guidelines issued thereunder (or) 
The actions taken against the listed 
entity/ its promoters/ directors/ 

subsidiaries either by SEBI or by Stock 
Exchanges are specified in the last 
column. 

Resignation of statutory auditors from 
the listed entity or its material 
subsidiaries: 

In case of resignation of statutory 
auditor from the listed entity or any of its 
material subsidiaries during the 

financial year, the listed entity and / or 
its material subsidiary(ies) has / have 
complied with 
paragraph 6.1 and 6.2 of section V-D of 

chapter V of the Master Circular on 
compliance with the provisions of the 
LODR Regulations by listed entities. 
No additional non-compliances 

observed: 

No additional 

observed 
non-compliances 

for SEBI 
regulation/circular/guidance note etc. 
except as reported above. 

any 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore - 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

Yes 

Yes 

As confirmed by 
the management 

no action was 

taken against 
listed 

/ its 
directors / its 

subsidiaries 

and 

promoters 

except 
mentioned in 

the para (a) 
observation table 

NA 

Yes 

C.P.No. 
11103 

Comoa 

Nil 

Nil 

On 30th October 

2024, SEBI issued a 
demand notice inter 
alia to Ascend 

Telecom 
Infrastructure Private 

Limited imposing a 
penalty of 5,000/ for 
delay in intimating 
the SEBI regarding 
meeting of 

shareholders and INR 

56,000/- for non 
submission of Annual 

reports under SEBI 
Regulations. 
There was 

resignation 
statutory auditors 
from the Company 
or its material 

subsidiary. 

no 
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S 
Rafeeulla Shariff BBM, MBA, FCS 
Practicing Company Secretary 

I further, report that the listed entity is in compliance with the disclosure requirements of 
Employee Benefit Scheme Documents in terms of regulation 46(2) (za) of the LODR Regulations. 
Not Applicable 

Assumptions & limitation of scope and review: 

No. 41, Patalamma Temple Street 
Basavanagudi, Near South End Circle 
Bangalore 560 004, Karnataka, India 
Mobile: +91 7259700201 

E-Mail: csshariff2011@gmail.com 

1. Compliance of the applicable laws and ensuring the authenticity of documents and 
information furnished, are the responsibilities of the management of the listed entity. 

2. My responsibility is to report based upon my examination of relevant documents and 
information. This is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of 
account of the listed entity. 

4. This report is solely for the intended purpose of compliance in terms of Regulation 24A (2) of 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
listed entity nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the listed entity. 

5. It is the responsibility of the Company's management to maintain records and establish 
appropriate systems for ensuring compliance with applicable SEBI Regulations, circulars, and 
guidelines issued from time to time and to ensure the adequacy and operational effectiveness of 
such systems. 

6. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Guidance Note on Annual Secretarial 
Compliance Report issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI), involving such 
examinations and verifications as deemed necessary and adequate for the purpose. 

Place: Bangalore 
Date: 29h May 2025 

! 

Poteelaag Signature: 
Name of the PCS: Rafeeulla Sharir 
FCS No.: F9367 

CP No.:11103 
Peer Review No.:3190/2023 
UDIN: FO09367G000498031 

A SHA 

C.PNo. 

11103 

g Compa 
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